Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are effective or available for early adoption
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2005. Information on the changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these new and revised
HKFRSs for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements is provided in
note 2.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2005 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in associates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set
out below:

- investment property (see note 1(g)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-

sale securities (see note 1(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary, in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is a company in which the Group,
directly or indirectly, holds more than half of the issued
share capital or controls more than half of the voting
power or controls the composition of the board of
directors. Subsidiaries are considered to be controlled
if the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to
govern the financial and operating policies, so as to
obtain benefits from their activities.

An investment in a controlled subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control

ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests at the balance sheet date, being the
portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to
equity interests that are not owned by the Company,
whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, are
presented in the consolidated balance sheet and
statement of changes in equity within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Minority interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for
the year between minority interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the minority,
are charged against the Group’s interest except to the
extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and
is able to, make additional investment to cover the losses.
If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group’s
interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has
been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less any impairment losses
(see note 1(k)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the associate’s net assets, unless it is classified
as held for sale. The consolidated income statement
includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the associates for the year, including any
impairment loss on goodwill relating to the investments
in associates recognised for the year (see note 1(e)
and (k)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal and
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in
the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(k)), unless it is classified as held for sale.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment of associates over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 1(k)). In
respect of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill
is included in the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Goodwill (continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate
during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or
loss on disposal.

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries
and associates, are as follows:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets and are initially stated at fair value. At
each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
with any resulted gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(Kk)).-

Other investments in securities are classified as
available-for-sale securities and are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised directly in equity, except for
impairment losses (see note 1(k)). When these
investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

(h)

Other investments in equity securities (continued)

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/
sell the investments.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(j)) to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at
fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 1(s)(iii).

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour,
the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see note 1(u)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong

dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items

of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated

residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

toll bridge is depreciated on an units-of-usage
basis which is based on the actual traffic volume
for a particular period over the projected total
traffic volume throughout the periods for which
the Group is granted the right to operate the
bridge. The projected total traffic volume is based
on independent professional traffic studies. It is
a Group policy to compare the yearly actual traffic
volume with the projected traffic volume.
Appropriate adjustments will be made should
actual volume be materially different from that
projected;

buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50
years after the date of completion;
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

- other fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

Toll bridge ancillary facilities 5to 10 years

Waste-water treatment 20 years

infrastructure

Machinery and equipment 51to 15 years

Leasehold improvements 10 years or over
the remaining
term of the
lease, if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 5to 10 years

Motor vehicles, electronic 3to 12 years

equipment and other
fixed assets

No depreciation is provided in respect of

construction in progress.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) —. TESEE #)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Amortisation of waste-water treatment concession right

is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

its estimated useful life of 25 years. Both the period and

method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

(i)
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(i) Leased assets () HEEE
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) HETAEEZ EE
Z DM
Assets that are held by Group under leases which NEERBEHERE

transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ZEE MEPBAX
AR AR KR
MEIBBEEASH
ZHE FOBRE

ownership to the Group are classified as BHE-TEEBE
operating leases, with the following exception: ANEBDEBRE 2R
KAz TASE 2
ENNBRRKENR

Land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured

separately from the fair value of a building situated
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thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted EERNE FrEEY
for as being held under a finance lease, unless ZARESHEE"
the building is also clearly held under an EERMEHEANR:
operating lease. For these purposes, the BB R T e
inception of the lease is the time that the lease BIRCEHERER
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over BRIBRSNFLLETT S -
from the previous lessee, or at the date of IR EREAREE
construction of those buildings, if later. BRG] M &R -3
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(i) Leased assets (continued) () HEEE (&)
(i) Assets acquired under finance leases (i)  WREREHEBAZ
Where the Group acquires the use of assets under B AR E AR A
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair ERGEEFREL

value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off
the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Company or Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 1(h). Impairment losses
are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 1(k). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(i) Leased assets (continued) ) HEEE (&)

(i) Operating lease charges (i)  AEEHESZ L
Where the Group has the use of assets under NBASBEERLE
operating leases, payments made under the HERREEZE
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal g BRI E R
instalments over the accounting periods covered 2 REER SRR
by the lease term, except where an alternative HE st HRENR:
basis is more representative of the pattern of NEE ST AER
benefits to be derived from the leased asset. K ENEHME
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit AR B it R AR AR
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net EEEMESE 2 W
lease payments made. R RIBRAN A8 &

B Kk R
iR ERERT
TR REE T
B2 AR
The cost of acquiring land held under an BIFCERERFF 2
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line b2 YHE R AR TR
basis over the period of the lease term except MAHAR A B AR A
where the property is classified as an investment $H MR YMES R
property. RIREMERIBR SN
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(k)  Impairment of assets (k) EEHSE
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and ()  RAEFRERAM
other receivables JEYWKIA < 718
Investments in equity securities and other current R AN B S SE A AR
and non-current receivables that are stated at SRR B AR ER AR R A
cost or amortised cost or are classified as BRH L BRAEBEHK
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at each & REMTEEIETR
balance sheet date to determine whether there FENGRIA SR
is objective evidence of impairment. If any such EEBEITRE A
evidence exist, any impairment loss is determined HE B S R EREME
and recognised as follows: BFEIR - NF R
FiER AleEE
REREEBREN
T
= For current receivables that are carried at = IR AN B
cost, the impairment loss is measured as HI| BR 2 7% B
the difference between the carrying FE W SR IE T
amount of the financial asset and the = HEEEE
estimated future cash flows, discounted LB EE
at the current market rate of return for a Z R E B B
similar financial asset where the effect of % 48 LBt 7%
discounting is material. Impairment losses BE BT
for current receivables are reversed if in a % B ¥ &=
subsequent period the amount of the Ah3R (ZRBLIR
impairment loss decreases. HEEKN)
FF 2 R
EMELZE
BEETE W
HEHHERE
BEEEZ2
R Bl
&) fE Y 5018
ZiEEEE
Al T4l

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report



Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(k)  Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEEE B
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and ()  RAEFRERAM
other receivables (continued) JE W 5k 18 2 FE 1B
(#&)
For financial assets carried at amortised = W AR 8 K
cost, the impairment loss is measured as KI|ER 2 B
the difference between the asset’s carrying BEEMS
amount and the present value of estimated FIEEEZ
future cash flows, discounted at the BEZER
financial asset’s original effective interest B #IR B 7%
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate BE&YNZ
computed at initial recognition of these EREAIZ (B
assets). It E 8B EK
]t 3R B 5T

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised

in prior years.

ERBEZE
BRA =) fh5t
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) —. TFESTBE#)
(k)  Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEEE B
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and ()  RAEFRERAM
other receivables (continued) JE W 5k 18 2 FE 1B
(#)

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
directly in equity is removed from equity
and is recognised in profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised
directly in equity.

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report

14
L

REERS
ms FAIE
ERERA
TR 2 AE
25T E1EA
7 = N 8
O] W E 8 e
RAMERE
BamRARE
RZBEE
1B A W BE K
AN (BEHRE
] N & 8%
N GH) E13R
TAREM
BZET R
EXRREBER
Bz KX AR
ZEERR
Z R %8
E1E.

il
k

RiE=ER
ﬁw &
N
FEiEEEL

BE # Bl 18
o HIZZ
W= /N =]
2 {A] 38 0
BEHELRE
AR



Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(k)  Impairment of assets (continued) (k) BEEE B
(i) Impairment of other assets (i)  EMEEZFERE

Internal and external sources of information are TEEeREGEEE

reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify HEBINED RN

indications that the following assets may be SER LAREE T3
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an BERS HBFAREL
impairment loss previously recognised no longer FRIE R FEEE

exists or may have decreased: BB ERE R

D (FFZBRAN) -
- property, plant and equipment (other than = L EN =N
properties carried at revalued amounts); =i (REM
BEINEZ
/eI IE
= intangible assets; = EAE:

- investments in subsidiaries and associates - NG
(except for those classified as being held K B & R 7]
for sale); and 2B (Hn

BREEE
BRON) K

= goodwill. = FEESE

If any such indication exists, the asset’s fish 3R 1E 7] 5% & B

recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for 5 BB EE 2 I

goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated O] SRR TR otk

annually whether or not there is any indication of SN SRETBRM S B

impairment. WEHESGF (AT

(TimB & HIRFEE
PR °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R RM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which
the reversals are recognised.

N Debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments
are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(k)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts (see note 1(k)).

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report

ETEEFHEE (@)

(k)

M

EERE (B)

(i) Hua&EEZFHE

(&)

- FEEER
=]

ARV
MEEMS
i AIEEE
A] Yo [E] 2B
ZfAETH R
B Al
AR
BR-mEz
REBET
SO

BB R
@l R R R %
BEIN KRG
BREFE
P FE R 2 7
BEERKZ
BRE{E- 18
5 18 B [l 5t
A B B
FEZE®
RA

FEWBRK - Lt FE WK IR~ 12
ERENE

FEUBR R - A U IR 2
T MENFRVIFRAAE
FERR. 1R B2 8 56 A AR
REREBEEIR (R
AE—(k)) o HELnA R 1 Uk
ERETRBALZREE
o A BB R [ &
TR EENE A
7 UG IRIR A A E R R IR
fRFEEERYIR (R E—
(k) °



Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
cost and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses

Creditors, other payables and accrued expenses are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) - ESTBX®)
(p) Employee benefits (p) EEEF

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions (i) FEAE S 1E M N ERE
to defined contribution plans Vs G257
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, Fie FEALFE
contributions to defined contribution plans and B R EREMEHR
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in R TR IERER
the year in which the associated services are Mz RN EE R
rendered by employees. Where payment or SRR FER
settlement is deferred and the effect would be R o s B < ROE RE 1T
material, these amounts are stated at their present EREAD R B
values. HFEARARET

(i) Share-based payments (i) KRG EN

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant

RERFEREZA
RESHRF/EIN
R-MEERZANZE
AR 238

date using the binomial lattice model, taking into e RAETIERRAZ
account the terms and conditions upon which the T B AR - 4
options were granted. Where the employees have =R IR 2 15

to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) —. TESEE #)

(p)  Employee benefits (continued) (p) 1EEFEF &)

(i) Share-based payments (continued) (i) HUBRHEN (&)
During the vesting period, the number of share A RRERA - (5T AT
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any SR RIS g
adjustment to the cumulative fair value {EH IR AT - BRIER K
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to METSZHNAREE
the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless Rz ER BEIE
the original employee expenses qualify for AR EEFHERZZR
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding T ARE L FHRIAETE
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting RETFAN L Bamks
date, the amount recognised as an expense is A B WEE
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share NFE B IERER R -
options that vest (with a corresponding LB BRIERE
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where REEFFE E UGS
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting SRR B SR AR AN
conditions that relate to the market price of the NEIEH 2 TER
Company’s shares. The equity amount is B SRR R
recognised in the capital reserve until either the L BRRIR AR AR
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the ZEREHB ERAE
share premium account) or the option expires (WAE B A REEIERR
(when it is released directly to retained profits). JERE) Hme T

EEAFEETER
BEXEREEITR
(BRE=RHRE
AR) - Sk AR R fE M
(EEEBAREBR
M) Blke

(q9) Income tax () FIsH

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which
case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or

AEFEMASHERARHE
FMBERRREERBEE
B AR RRLEREE
ENABZEHHERER
MEERR - HEAN R B3 () 2 AN Hf
BMREMEEHAEENAE
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substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and T YRR E o FELARE
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous SR RAEAEEAEE
Y, ERMBIE Y B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R RM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Income tax (continued)

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of

the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Toll bridge revenue

Toll bridge revenue, net of business tax, is

recognised on usage of the bridge.

(i) Waste-water treatment revenue

Waste-water treatment revenue is recognised

when the waste-water treatment process has

been completed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Revenue recognition (continued)

FTEETHE (B

(s)

WAFER ()

(i) Rental income from operating leases (i) HEHEEFEZHE
WA
Rental income receivable under operating leases BIFLEHERK 2
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments e WA R E F 5
over the periods covered by the lease term, FrlE 2 &st AR
except where an alternative basis is more SHEEEEREKR
representative of the pattern of benefits to be R MRIEF S —HE
derived from the use of leased asset. Lease FRAXEAEESR
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss EFfEEZ2HNZm 2R
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease o B R H 2 HE R
payments receivable. REHEXRPRRER
1% T UEL 2 4 7H & 5K
T HERR) — 15
(iv)  Property management fee and environmental (iv) VEEEERIRIRE
protection project management and consultancy B & EIA R BN
fee income
Property management fee and environmental MEEIRE RIRIRIE
protection project management and consultancy BEREBAMERA
fee income are recognised when the related T4 (48 7 AR 75 s
services are rendered. e
(v)  Dividends (v) RE
Dividend income from unlisted investments is FLEMRE KRB
recognised when the shareholder’s right to A 5 8 P ER 1 37 W R

receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

®)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(vi)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised directly in a separate component of equity.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign operation
acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated at the
foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to

get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditures for
the asset are being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

interrupted or complete.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties
are considered to be related to the Group if the Group
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party
or exercise significant influence over the party in making
financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where
the Group and the party are subject to common control
or common significant influence. Related parties may
be individuals (being members of key management
personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close
family members) or other entities and include entities
which are under the significant influence of related
parties of the Group where those parties are individuals,
and post-employment benefit plans which are for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is
a related party of the Group.

FTEETHE (@)

(u)

(v)

BEKAE

EERARTINES 2 B
ABRR BRIFRFEBERK
ADEBA BEREER
RE— B RS HIER T Al ETR
HERHEZEERRA
BRI T LAB Ao

tEERARTIR B E ZFAXE
£ EERAELERBRE
REEFERERERHE
Prs 2 ABETTRAE A
EREBEEZRMDIKA-
EMERHERAREERF
HEE MG EMSR 2
BRZR _E T s e AR - BD
ERPIERELEENMER
PR

BAEA AL

PUFMBRERM S - LA
SERERRERES %
RYEH TS AR R R I 3
HITEBERFE N IR
s SAKEREGZ M
AHKREHRTE 2 AL
AR AR B 2 B Bt
Lo AR A LRI AZEA (BD
TREEAR BARER
RR/REFEREKE)
HEMER BRXAKH
MHMALTEATZEZER
iz B AT BEA AR
REBNTASERE 2B
Big A Et Bl R L AL
EEE c BiE-

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting format and
geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial
statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to that segment. For example, segment assets may
include trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances
and intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of
the consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between
group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available to
other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax
balances, corporate and financing expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2005.

The accounting policies of the Group and/or Company after
the adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs have been
summarised in note 1. The following sets out information on the
significant changes in accounting policies for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 38).

(a) Amortisation of positive and negative goodwill
(HKFRS 3, Business combinations and HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets)

In prior periods:

- positive or negative goodwill which arose prior to
1 January 2001 was taken directly to reserves at
the time it arose, and was not recognised in the
income statement until disposal or impairment of

the acquired business;

- positive goodwill which arose on or after 1
January 2001 was amortised on a straight line
basis over its useful life and was subject to
impairment testing when there were indications
of impairment; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Amortisation of positive and negative goodwill
(HKFRS 3, Business combinations and HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets) (continued)

- negative goodwill which arose on or after 1
January 2001 was amortised over the weighted
average useful life of the depreciable/amortisable
non-monetary assets acquired, except to the
extent it related to identified expected future
losses as at the date of acquisition. In such cases
it was recognised in the income statement as

those expected losses were incurred.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36, the Group has changed its
accounting policies relating to goodwill. Under the new
policy, the Group no longer amortises positive goodwill
but tests it at least annually for impairment. Also with
effect from 1 January 2005 and in accordance with
HKFRS 3, if the fair value of the net assets acquired in a
business combination exceeds the consideration paid
(i.e. an amount arises which would have been known as
negative goodwill under the previous accounting policy),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
it arises. Further details of these new policies are set out

in note 1(e).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Amortisation of positive and negative goodwill
(HKFRS 3, Business combinations and HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets) (continued)

The new policy in respect of the amortisation of positive
goodwill has been applied prospectively in accordance
with the transitional arrangements under HKFRS 3. As a
result, comparative amounts have not been restated, the
cumulative amount of amortisation as at 1 January 2005
has been offset against the cost of the goodwill and no
amortisation charge for goodwill has been recognised
in the income statement for the year ended 31 December
2005. This has increased the Group’s profit after taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2005 by $2,442,000.

Also in accordance with the transitional arrangements
under HKFRS 3, goodwill which had previously been
taken directly to reserves (i.e. goodwill which arose
before 1 January 2001) will not be recognised in profit
or loss on disposal or impairment of the acquired
business, or under any other circumstances.

According to HKFRS 3, the amount which would have
been known as negative goodwill under the previous
accounting policy is recognised immediately in the
income statement as it arises. The carrying amount of
negative goodwill existing at 1 January 2005 shall be
derecognised, with a corresponding adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits. These have
decreased the Group’s profit after taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2005 by $50,000 and net assets of
the Group at 31 December 2005 have increased by
$630,000.

B BRZ2E (@)

(a)

EREREEE 2 #E (B
B RS R FIW %
Baot R(EBETERD
EI6MIEERA]) (&)

ERABIEERE 2K
RERB(EBVBRELE
AI) 358 2 BB ERAR
TR AL LR BT
WESENRBE-_ZTAHF
—A—HBZ R EBEHES
O R AN R WA
—ETERFF+A=1+—
HIEFE BRI ERE
EEE T ol BBV EEUN
SEHE_TTAFT-A
=+ —HLEFEZRTHER
A1 hn2,442,0007T°

AN RIBCE B RS 2
) S35 2 MBI B AT
WHEE B H SR HIRAER
- SEEMEMBER T8
EEERFAREZEHE (B
R-ZFE—F—A—BZH
EEZEE) B eERa:
KPR

RIBCE BB HREER) E
3 EBEEHBOR T A
[BRE] 2 RN EERED
REBRRTHERNR_Z
?ﬁﬁfﬂfaaﬁizé
P ERREE A T AR
HW{RE B AR E L AR FE
TR EBEHAEFE
E_TERFEF+_A=+—
HIEFE 2 BB & Z R
50,000t R AEER _TF
EF+-—A=+—BZ&E
JF{EIE NN630,0007T

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Financial instruments (HKAS 32, Financial
instruments: Disclosure and presentation and HKAS
39, Financial instruments: Recognition and

measurement)

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKAS 32 and HKAS 39, the Group has changed its
accounting policies relating to financial instruments to

those as set out in notes 1(f), (k) to (n).

In prior years, equity investments held on a continuing
basis for an identifiable long-term purpose were
classified as investment securities and stated at cost
less provision. Other investments in securities (including
those held for trading and for non-trading purposes) were
stated at fair value with changes in fair value recognised

in profit or loss.

With effect from 1 January 2005, and in accordance with
HKAS 39, all investments, with the exception of securities
held for trading purposes, dated debt securities being
held to maturity and certain unquoted equity investments,
are classified as available-for-sale securities and carried
at fair value. Changes in the fair value of available-for-
sale securities are recognised in equity, unless there is
objective evidence that an individual investment has
been impaired. Further details of the new policies are
set out in note 1(f).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial instruments (HKAS 32, Financial
instruments: Disclosure and presentation and HKAS
39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement) (continued)

The changes in accounting policies were adopted by
way of an opening balance adjustment to retained
earnings as at 1 January 2005 and net assets of the
Group have decreased by $3,342,000. Comparative
amounts have not been restated as this is prohibited by
the transitional arrangements in HKAS 39.

As a result of these new policies, there is no material
impact on the Group’s profit before taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2005 and net income recognised
directly in equity for the year ended 31 December 2005
has increased by $8,811,000.

Employee share option scheme (HKFRS 2, Share-
based payment)

In prior years, no amounts were recognised when
employees (which term includes directors) were granted
share options over shares in the Company. If the
employees chose to exercise the options, the nominal
amount of share capital and share premium were
credited only to the extent of the option’s exercise price
receivable.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKFRS 2, the Group has adopted a new policy for
employee share options. Under the new policy, the
Group recognises the fair value of such share options
as an expense with a corresponding increase recognised
in a capital reserve within equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Employee share option scheme (HKFRS 2, Share-
based payment) (continued)

The Group has taken advantage of the transitional
provisions set out in HKFRS 2 under which the new
recognition and measurement policies have not been

applied to the following grants of options:

(a) all options granted to employees on or before
7 November 2002; and

(b) all options granted to employees after
7 November 2002 but which had vested before
1 January 2005.

As the Group’s options were granted to employees after
7 November 2002 but which had vested before 1 January
2005, the adoption of HKFRS 2 has no impact on the
Group’s net assets and results for the current and prior

years.

Details of the employee share option scheme are set
out in report of the directors and note 28.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Investment property (HKAS 40, Investment property

and HK(SIC) Interpretation 21, Income taxes —

Recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets)

Changes in accounting policies relating to investment

properties are as follows:

(i)

Timing of recognition of movements in fair value
in the income statement

In prior years movements in the fair value of the
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portfolio, or when a deficit previously recognised R B A SERZ AR
in the income statement had reversed, or when BZEBR HERD
an individual investment property was disposed RSP ERZE

of. In these limited circumstances movements in
the fair value were recognised in the income
statement.

Upon adoption of HKAS 40 as from 1 January
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Investment property (HKAS 40, Investment property

and HK(SIC) Interpretation 21, Income taxes —

Recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets)

B BRZ2E (&)

(d)

REMF (BBSTERD
BAK [ REWEIR(EB
S ERD RBE215R [ Fr

(continued) BH - WEEATEREE
El (#&)
(i) Timing of recognition of movements in fair value ()  REZXERANLE
in the income statement (continued) ZE) i ()
As the Group had no investment property HRAEEN IR E

(ii)

revaluation reserve and deficits were recognised
in the income statement previously, the adoption
of this new policy has no impact on the Group’s
net assets and results for the current and prior

years.

Measurement of deferred tax on movements in

fair value

In prior years the Group was required to apply
the tax rate that would be applicable to the sale
of investment property to determine whether any
amounts of deferred tax should be recognised

on the revaluation of investment property.
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2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Investment property (HKAS 40, Investment property

and HK(SIC) Interpretation 21, Income taxes —

Recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets)
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HK(SIC) Interpretation 21, the Group recognises
deferred tax on movements in the value of an
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applicable to the property’s use, if the Group has
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Leasehold land and buildings (HKAS 17, Leases)

In prior years, leasehold land and buildings held for own
use were stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKAS 17, the Group has adopted a new policy for
leasehold land and buildings held for own use. Under
the new policy, the leasehold interest in the land held
for own use is accounted for as being held under an
operating lease where the fair value of the interest in
any buildings situated on the leasehold land could be
measured separately from the fair value of the leasehold
interest in the land at the time the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee,
or at the date of construction of those buildings, if later.
In case the two elements cannot be allocated reliably,
the entire lease is classified as a finance lease and
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Further details of the new policy are
set out in notes 1(h) and (j). The adoption of this new
policy has no impact on the Group’s net assets and
results for the current and prior years.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Retranslation of goodwill on consolidation of a
foreign operation (HKAS 21, The effects of changes
in foreigh exchange rates)

In prior years, goodwill arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation was translated at the exchange rates

ruling at the transaction dates.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKAS 21, the Group has changed its accounting policy
relating to retranslation of goodwill. Under the new policy,
any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation is treated as an asset of the foreign operation
and is retranslated at exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date, together with the retranslation of
the net assets of the foreign operation. Further details of

the new policy are set out in note 1(t).

In accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKAS 21, this new policy has not been adopted
retrospectively and is only applied to acquisitions
occurring on or after 1 January 2005. The adoption of
this new policy to acquisitions occurring on or after
1 January 2005 has no material impact on the Group’s

net assets for the current year.

B BRZ2E (@)

()

EHEEBIEBIREREHN
BERE (FAGTER
FAH[IMEEREH &
£1)

RIBAE R I T
ety BBERR B 28
AR RE -

BE-ZETRF—A—HE:
BT HE(EBEHEANSE
IR AEEEET
ERBREREZGTHBIR.
IRIRFBUR - W g INETS
FEA 2 EMEESEES
INERzEERE ERE
HBREBIINEB 2 EETF
B UEERA 2 EXSHHR
B bHER 2 E—FER
FPARTE—() °

BREBE(E A ER) E21
S 2 1B R S I TR R BUR
TEBPER UREESR
AR=ZE2RF—A—H
ZEETZWEEERE -G
TTHF ARk
172 W B THER AN R THRT I
FUWEHREEREE 2
BEFEBKERNERY
a,
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9) Changes in presentation (HKAS 1, Presentation of

financial statements)

B BRZ2E (&)

(9)

EHHA 22 (FEE
BN FE1R B BHRRZ2
#]1)

(i) Presentation of shares of associate’s taxation (i) YRy AN b= P
(HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements) Z2#HAR ((BEE
FTERIY 155 (8175

WK Z#H])

In prior years, the Group’s share of taxation of
associates accounted for using the equity method

RBEFE AEH
R EhATELZ

was included as part of the Group’s income tax Fir B & A R B8 -
in the consolidated income statement. With effect STAREELGRE B
from 1 January 2005, in accordance with the KEIGHMET-B=

implementation guidance in HKAS 1, the Group
has changed the presentation and includes the
share of taxation of associates accounted for
using the equity method in the respective shares
of profit or loss reported in the consolidated
income statement before arriving at the Group’s
profit or loss before tax. These changes in
presentation have been applied retrospectively
with comparatives restated accordingly.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9) Changes in presentation (HKAS 1, Presentation of

financial statements) (continued)

(ii)

Minority interests (HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements and HKAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements)

In prior years, minority interests at the balance

BIEER 28 (B)

(9)

EHHA 22 (T
ERAD F1R M BHERZ2
1) (&)

(i) LEREER ((F
B2 IR E 15
(B &R 2 2]
R(EE SR
FoTH [trE KA
B#HE])

EREFE REE

sheet date were presented in the consolidated Bz DBIRR R T
balance sheet separately from liabilities and as RiraBERBRA

deduction from net assets. Minority interests in
the results of the Group for the year were also

HEEO RE®R I
SIEE EFRE 2

separately presented in the income statement as o DB R T &
a deduction before arriving at the profit EFANFEEITEEE
attributable to shareholders (the equity mERNDFR2H W

shareholders of the Company).

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to
comply with HKAS 1 and HKAS 27, the Group
has changed its accounting policy relating to
presentation of minority interests. Under the new

SVERTEBR (AR
BIRCR) AR B AT
YR 2 3R

REB(EBESHE
AN EIRR(EES
FHERD 2757 2R
B H_TERF—

policy, minority interests are presented as part of A—BE REEE
equity, separately from interests attributable to FT AL BREE
the equity shareholders of the Company. Further 2w EETIH

details of the new policy are set out in note 1(c).
These changes in presentation have been applied
retrospectively with comparatives restated
accordingly.

RARBINER - D
PR “E@ﬁlJf’E@E#
Z— &b EmAR
Hx%ZFHﬁ%E%Eﬁ
S PIHR 2
—HERERHE—
(c) ° WE2HHAZ
HECEYER M
BB F I ERE
#Po
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Definition of related parties (HKAS 24, Related party
disclosures)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 24, Related party
disclosures, the definition of related parties as disclosed
in note 1(v) has been expanded to clarify that related
parties include entities that are under the significant
influence of a related party that is an individual (i.e. key
management personnel, significant shareholders and/
or their close family members) and post-employment
benefit plans which are for the benefit of employees of
the Group or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group. The clarification of the definition of related parties
has not resulted in any material changes to the previously
reported disclosures of related party transactions nor
has it had any material effect on the disclosures made
in the current period, as compared to those that would
have been reported had Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 20, Related party disclosures, still
been in effect.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

3.  TURNOVER =. EX%
The principal activities of the Group are toll bridge operation, REBEZFEZEBBKNEBRBRE
environmental protection investment and operation (waste-water BOIRRIRE REE O57KBRIER &
treatment plants and waste-to-energy power plants), property WIRREREWH) MERERE
investments and management, environmental protection project B IRREEEERBERRKRERE
management and consultancy and investment holding. i
Turnover represents the toll bridge revenue, waste-water EXERERERRKE J5KE
treatment revenue, property rental income, property B MERSWAVEERE
management fee income and environmental protection project WA RIRIRIE B B 18 MR BRI
management and consultancy fee income. The amount of each AN FERNEEE FEREARNZIE
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during FERASRIBEFELR T :
the year is as follows:
2005 2004
—2THF —ZTE
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
Toll bridge revenue W ERRY = 59,824 47,103
Waste-water treatment revenue VAL 56,340 =
Property rental income IETIEEAL YN 14,245 12,819
Property management fee income MEEEBWA 3,414 2,721
Environmental protection project IRIRIE B B KB
management and consultancy & A
fee income - 2,601
133,823 65,044

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

4. OTHER REVENUE

Interest income

Dividend income from unlisted securities
Gain on disposal of associates

Gain on liquidation of subsidiary

Others

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

S IA

FEEMESFZBBUWA
HEB 2 ARz W
B A RERMSE

Hit

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Finance costs:

Interest on bank advances wholly
repayable within five years

Interest on other bank advances

Interest on loans from ultimate
holding company

Less: borrowing costs capitalised

into construction in progress

*

MIEER:

ARAFREHEER
ZIRITERZHE

HARITERZHE

REERARER

ZFB

W ERNERZTIZ

Bz fEERA

* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of

6.1% — 6.4% per annum (2004: Nil).
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Hlg A
2005 2004
—EERF —ETNF
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
9,072 1,148
1,135 266
= 660
= 555
2,206 1,974
12,413 4,603
BB AT E R
BRELRTEFIS R, (GTA) :
2005 2004
—ETRF —EEPOE
$’000 $000
F Fr
986 2,088
23,540 14,814
17,141 10,712
41,667 27,614
(9,577) =
32,090 27,614

* EBERAEKE 1% —6.4% 2 FRKE
A (ZFEZPYEF - 4E)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(continued)

(b)

Staff costs: (b)

Contributions to defined
contribution plans
Salaries, wages and other benefits

Less: staff costs capitalised into
construction in progress

Other items: (c)

Amortisation of land lease premium
Amortisation (other than of land
lease premium)
— positive goodwill
— negative goodwill included in
share of profits of associates
— other intangible assets
Depreciation
— assets held for use under
operating leases
— other assets
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Auditors’ remuneration
— audit services
— other services
Loss on disposal of associate
Net gain on sale of fixed assets
Operating lease charges: minimum
lease payments
— hire of waste-water treatment
facilities
— hire of premises
Rentals receivable from investment
properties less direct outgoings of
$1,149,000 (2004: $1,391,000)

. BRHRAEFN (&)

8 TR A:

TE BT 8l
R

e TEREMER

B ERERTRE
BERLzBTRA

HIER :

TR E & R
#iE (LA EERRIN)

— A2
— BEE GrAMGEZ
RAEEM)
- Hit BV EE
e
—-REREHE
MEE
—HMEE
(5 (Was) /iR FeE
AN 2
—EZRE
— B AR
HEBERRZER
HERBEEE 2 WaFER
HEMEER &
HEEH
— KRR REEE

— YRS
JEWIEEMER S HE
7 Hi1,149,0007T
ZETNE:
1,391,0007T)

BEATBMENR, GEA) : (&)

2005 2004
—EERF —ETPOF
$’000 $'000
F Fr
1,146 525
29,547 17,375
30,693 17,900
(10,314) =
20,379 17,900
283 =
= 1,881
= (674)
115 =
1,018 1,018
21,275 14,150
(1,151) 3,556
1,825 1,480
5 1,086
= 660
(587) (37)
959 =
649 370
(13,096) (11,428)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

6. SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSOCIATES

Share of profits of associates before
taxation

Share of associates’ taxation

Amortisation of negative goodwill

Share of valuation gains on investment

properties

PTG & R RIRR AT &L A

PGB R R IR
BB
FrE R BB ERR
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il

2005 2004
—EZHEF —EFNF
(restated)
(E#H)

$°000 $'000
FiT Fr
78,738 99,049

(10,693) (18,835)
68,045 80,214
- 674
68,045 80,888
- 4,294
68,045 85,182
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

7.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement

represents:
Current tax — PRC income tax AEABIE —
FRiEH

Provision for the year RNERZRE

Over-provision in respect of BTFERE
prior years B

Deferred tax BB IE

Origination and reversal of ERERNES
temporary differences FNéE o]

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the financial statements as the Group sustained a loss
for Hong Kong Profits Tax purposes during the year.
Taxation for the PRC operations is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the PRC.
During the year, certain PRC subsidiaries are subject to
tax at 50% of the standard tax rates or fully exempt from
income tax under the relevant tax rules and regulations.

+.

REBBRZFEHR
(a) HREBRRRAMTVAESR
F=

2005 2004
—EBERF —ZTE
(restated)

(E#H)

$°000 $'000

Fi T

4,748 1,211
(50) (3,208)
4,698 (1,997)

(16,566) 1,669
(11,868) (328)

HRAFEAREBRZH
TRE1R - B AR SR B A
MR BR SR
B BRI 2 HIRE T
BIRITEERR R E-F
A RIEBRARBAR IR
BETHENEBRRZRE
B RE0% ANV AR E S
LGk C IS

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT +.
(continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

Profit before tax

Notional tax on profit before tax,
calculated at the rates
applicable to profits in the tax
jurisdictions concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible
expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of profits entitled to tax
exemption in the PRC

Tax effect of prior year’s temporary
differences recognised this year

Tax effect of utilisation of unused
tax losses not recognised
in prior years

Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised

Over-provision in prior years

Actual tax credit

ER Tt B & A

RRBRERBEE SR 2
TS T R GhBR B AT
BRFE 2 ZHHIE

PRIFRSE 2 IR &

FERBMMAZ BRI E
AZETEFIRREES
Z BNz RARE
REFEAZAEFE
ERERHIBTE
PRABEFEREAMA
AR Z AIHENERZ

BIES
*ﬁ%ﬁﬂ*ﬁ%Zﬂﬁﬂ
EEHIELE
NEFER AR

BERHIBRE
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mERERZMES (&)

(b) RERARRFEZHERD

EE AR 2 # iR
2005 2004
—E2FHF —TTF
(restated)
(E#H)
$°000 $'000
FiT Fr
108,976 85,890
20,028 19,365
4,002 3,192
(14,881) (23,102)
(6,874) (3,661)
(7,396) =
(6,715) (733)
18 7,819
(50) (3,208)
(11,868) (328)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION N EEEE
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of REBERBCRBEBDE—B/~+—
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: ol EEMEWT:
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme 2005
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
£ A 1) “BTHF
£ Xtk ENFE BBTEA  BRGHEMN #BE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Executive directors YTES
Wang Mingquan FHRE - 25 - - 25
Zang Qiutao k= - 1,694 500 - 2,194
Li Xueming Z2mH - 1,694 500 - 2,194
Chen Xiaoping BRNF - 1,944 1,200 - 3,144
Fan Yan Hok, Philip BLE - 1,605 420 100 2,125
Huang Chaohua HHE - 1,136 700 - 1,836
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond #3352 - 1,026 180 59 1,265
Chen Shuang B3k - 25 - - 25
Zhang Weiyun K= - 878 - - 878
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Sir David Akers-Jones BREHT 110 25 - - 135
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey FEE 100 25 = = 125
Mar Selwyn Bk 100 25 - - 125
310 10,102 3,500 159 14,071

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) N. EE#ME @)
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme 2004
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
E2 = )4 U3
ik EMHz WIBTEA  RIRETEIMESR ok
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fir Fir Fir Fr Fir
Executive directors HTES

Wang Mingquan T - - - - -
Zang Qiutao milE - 1,284 = = 1,284
Li Xueming 2 = 770 = = 770
Chen Xiaoping BN - 1,562 800 - 2,362
Fan Yan Hok, Philip BB - 1,300 400 85 1,785
Huang Chaohua UES - 715 400 - 1,115
Wong Kam Chung, Raymond =852 - 780 400 59 1,239
Chen Shuang PR3k - 328 - - 328
Zhang Weiyun RE= = 853 = = 853

Independent non- BYFHTES

executive directors
Sir David Akers-Jones BRERT 85 - - - 85
Li Kwok Sing, Aubrey ZEE 80 - - - 80
Mar Selwyn BHE 23 = = = 23
Lee Ka Sze, Carmelo Rt 60 - - - 60
248 7,592 2,000 144 9,984
As at 31 December 2005, the directors held share options under R-ZEZERFE+_A=+—"H &
the Company’s share option scheme. The details of the share SRBAQBEIRETEIFEBR
options are disclosed under the paragraph “Share option - BREREFEHNEETE W
scheme” in the report of the directors and note 28. & ERER S — B R+
AG

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report



Notes to the Financial Statements
R RM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS .

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, all are
directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.

10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF T.
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a profit of $107,778,000 (2004:
$152,687,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

11. DIVIDENDS
(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

Interim dividend declared and BBk & AR S &R
paid of 0.6 cent per ordinary share
(2004: 0.4 cent per ordinary share) &I EAZ0.4751l)

Final dividend proposed after the REEE Bz D kAR

1% B A% E B A% 0.6 1L

(ZZZME - gKR

TmA%0.6751L)

balance sheet date of 0.6 cent
per ordinary share (2004: 0.6 cent

per ordinary share)

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

B = % B (Bl A £

hE&EHFMENACHRES:
BRENME BN\

RATRREGEERT

RAEIRERELERE BFIBIEET
107,778,000 (ZEEMNF:
152,687,0007T) B AR R Z B
THEKR A

EBR0.6/8Il (ZETmF:

. RE
(a) BEREFFAQX2IRRZAE
ERE
2005 2004
—EERF —ETPOF
$°000 $'000
F Fr
15,311 10,193
15,311 15,293
30,622 25,486

WEE RREZED KRS
AERAEAERREE.

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

11. DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year, of 0.6

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $105,330,000 (2004: $86,776,000) and
the weighted average number of 2,550,669,234 ordinary
shares (2004: 2,548,418,257 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—
Effect of share options exercised
(note 29(c)(ii))

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report

B E—EMBEFEE -
WA F AR EI 5 2
REARR BB AR & A%0.675 1L
cent per ordinary share (2004: Nil) (=== P04 : %)

Eﬂﬁ%kgz/
(HtaE=-—+1(c)(ii))

W+-A=+—H2
BB 8

+—. RE (&)

(b)

BRE—EMRFE XR

FRAEL TG F AR TR
RERRKRE

2005 2004

—ETRF —EEPOE

$°000 $'000

For Fr

15,293 -

+=. SRER

(a) EBREXREF

BREARZFTHREEAR AR
TaRRREMGLZRF
105,330,0007T (== Z[Y
% :86,776,0007T) R FAE,
BT E R INFE T A&
2,550,669, 234 5% & @Ak (—
TEPYLE 2 548,418,257 /%
LTAR) st E -HitE A
T

TR AR I -5 2R
2005 2004
—ETRF —ETF
’000 ‘000
FiE Fhg
2,548,812 2,548,312
1,857 106
2,550,669 2,548,418
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) +=. SRERN &)

(b)  Diluted earnings per share (b) SHREBER
BREERFTIEANRRY
Bk R R EWGAF
105,330,0007T (==
% :86,776,0007T) ML i@A%
AT 522 588,143,435
B (Z T T WM F
2,587,073,527%) st & H
FTEARAT:

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based

0|

on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of $105,330,000 (2004: $86,776,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,5688,143,435 shares (2004: 2,587,073,527 shares),
calculated as follows:

EmBE I (HE)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

2005 2004
—EFTRF ZEEFNF
’000 ‘000
FiR Fhir
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—8H<
ordinary shares at 31 December B AR N T 5 8K 2,550,669 2,548,418
Effect of deemed issue of shares BB R AR T &
under the Company’s share R AEREZTRO 2 ZE
option scheme for nil (Htax=+/1)
consideration (note 28) 37,474 38,656
Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—Hz
ordinary shares (diluted) at BRI a2 (hE)
31 December 2,588,143 2,587,074

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING T= ZEHE
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s D EE LR IRA S B 2 FB MR
business and geographical segments. Business segment DEMEL 2 BN EH D EE R
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because HAEE S EBERIBARERR
this is more relevant to the Group in making operating and N HMEBARESBEENEE
financial decisions. e
Business segments By SR
The Group comprises the following main business segments: REBEZEEZXBHEWAT:
Infrastructure investment  The operation of a toll bridge to generate toll HEhE BB W B B R A R
and operation fee revenue and investment in associates, K& Hlfias RIRER
which engage in power industry, to REENITEM
generate dividend income. B A A DA BRER
BREUA -
Property investmentand ~ The leasing and management of office ESE HEREBHAE
management premises and shopping arcades to RER B R 735 A R
generate rental and management fee RieRkEEE
income and to gain from the appreciation in WA AR5
the properties’ values in the long term. EBEzREAE
R s o
Environmental protection  The operation of waste-water treatment plants RIRIEE A8 25 7K B 38 DA
investment and to generate waste-water treatment revenue K &E FREUS KB B U
operation and construction of waste-to-energy power X B AE I R
plants. B E e
Environmental protection  The provision of management and RIRIEH RERRELEERE
project management consultancy services to environmental EBENS L N AP AR 75 - AR
and consultancy protection projects to generate NEE KBRS
management and consultancy fee income. FYA
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) +=. 2BHRE (&)
Business segments (continued) eSS (1)
Environmental Environmental
Infrastructure protection protection project
investment and Property investment investment management and Inter-segment
operation and management and operation consultancy limination Consolidated
HRRAREE NERERER BRREREE  BREREERED ARREE L

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Z221F _ZIME CRRRE CTENF C8RRE _TTME CERRF _TIMG C3RRE CEQE CSRRE SEME
(restated) (restated) (restated)

(ER) (&%) (E%)

§oo0  $0o0 o0  §ooo S0 S0 §oo0  §ooo  Sooo  s000  gooo  $000
i I i I i I i I r I i I

Revente from exteral RENMER

customers JA 59824 47108 17659 15540 56,340 - - 2,601 - - 19382 6o
Inter-segment revenue ABEMA - - - - - - M0 154 (7M0)  (15437) - -
Other revenue from external RENREP

oustomers AfplA 1316 952 % 26 - 590 21 - - 1909 1917
Unallocated other revenue FAREMBRA - - - - - - - - - - 10504 2686
Total Aif 5995 48774 18611 15560 56,576 - 00 18259 (3T,110) (15437) 146,206 69847
Segment resuls P 30 837 a8 4318 13876 (3047) B9 1447 (30479) (16437) 87867 47748
Unallocated operating income FALAE

and expenses WARER (14846)  (19426)
Proft fiom operations il B 83
Finance coss HhES (32000)  (27614)
Share of profs of associates AN 68,034 72633 - T 11 662 - - - - 6805 80888
Share of valuation gains on FEERELT

investment properties of RENZEE

associales B4 - - -4 - - - - - - -4
Income tax iR 11,868 38
Proft atr taxaton it 12084 86218

Depreciafion and amorfisafion KEEHE

for the year R 14175 13283 210 2,330 4819 561 1,155 509
Valuation gains on investment RANZER
properties B3 - - BB 14790 - - - -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Business segments (continued)

Environmental
Infrastructure protection
investment and Property investment investment
operation and management and operation
ERREREE WERERER RRRENEE
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
CESRE _SEMF CEERE _TEIMF CEERE _RAlA
§000 S0 soo0 oo Soa0  $000
i T fr T r S
Segment assets ABEE 640275 646726 346,791 319106 924435 143486
Interest in associates BENARE 2702 434,904 - - 602 575
Unallocated assets FIWAE
Total assets AESE
Segment liabilties B8k 2158 2537 6589 6762 20995 8141
Unallocated liabilties AR
Total liabilfes BEEE
Capital expenditure incurred RERAELR
during the year EXRY 3 385 7 8 620745 4564

T= oE®E (&)
Ko (&)
Environmental
protection project
management and Inter-segment
consultancy limination Consolidated
BREREERER ARREH &8
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
ZRR5F CTIMF C89RE _TIMF CRREE TN
$000  §oo0 o0 soo0 o0 $000
r S r S r I
52,99 47,007 - - 1964497 1,156,415
- - - - H3304 435479
25919 458927
2,673,720 2,050,821
4649 1202 - -2 18682
1,181,204 950,003
1404535 968,685
5242 119

Geographical segments

The Group’s business participates in two principal economic
environments. Hong Kong and other parts of the PRC are the
major markets for the Group’s business.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure

are based on the geographical location of the assets.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) +=.

Geographical segments (continued)

Revenue from external customers: REINAE PN

Hong Kong BB

Other parts of the PRC Fh B AL D 3t [

Segment assets: DEEE:

Hong Kong o

Other parts of the PRC R B E b b [

Capital expenditure incurred RNEREANEENERFAX
during the year:

Hong Kong BB

Other parts of the PRC Fh B AL D 3th [

DEEWE (&)

XD (&)

2005 2004
—EZRF —ETNF
$’000 $'000
F Fr

3,955 3,312
129,868 61,932
133,823 65,244
2005 2004
—EERF —ETNF
$’000 $'000
FiT Fr
467,094 654,920
2,206,626 1,395,901
2,673,720 2,050,821
2005 2004
—EERF —ETPOF
$°000 $'000
F Fr

767 39
636,025 6,150
636,792 6,189
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

14.  FIXED ASSETS TH. EEEE
(a) The Group (a) A&&£EH
Motor
vehicles, Interest in
Leasehold electronic |easehold land
improve-  equipment held for own
Toll Waste- ments,  and other use under
bridge water furniture  fixed assets operating
ancillary  treatment Machinery  and fixtures HE leases Total
Tol  faciities infrastructure  Land and and  HEHE  ETRE Construction Investment  RESERE fived assets
bridge ~ WEER  5KEE  buldngs equipment  EBBA REfh inprogress  Subdotal properties  HEEEz  BEEE
WERR  KERE  BEER  IHREF HERAE REE  EEEE  ARIR M RENE ERINER 4B
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $1000 $1000 $000 $1000 $1000 $000
i i i S S0 S S S i i i i
Cost or valuation; HAESEE:
At 1 January 2005 H_E5hE
-A-A 571,305 20,009 - 124,160 2,754 312 4173 3,209 728,733 230,054 - 958,787
Exchange adjustments B35 10,062 352 - 135 Pi] 1 67 - 10,650 - - 10,650
Addtions b5
- through acauistion -EauE
of business %] - - 50,232 11,521 35,162 - 3073 - 99,994 - 66,076 166,070
- others i - - 15,256 12,358 37,550 1,489 3,718 355,551 425,922 - 10,252 436,174
Transfer &2 - - - ) - - - - (BY0) 6810 - -
Disposels te - - S [e0)  6m) (%) () - W) - - W)
Fair value aojusiment Mg - - - - - - - - - 25,230 - 2,230
At 31 Decemoer 2005 NZ551%
SRR WO NN 0 TS O SR A MY R e
Representing; f&:
Cost fAE 561,367 20,361 65,468 139,420 74814 444 10,795 358,760 1,265,446 - 76328 1,331,774
Valuation - 2005 [fE-_550% - - - - - - - - - 262,194 - 262,194
581,367 20,361 65,488 139,420 74814 444 10,795 358,760 1,295,446 262,194 76,328 1,593,968
Accumulated depreciation BitiTERE%:
and amortisation:
At January 2005 NZ551%
-A-A 14,004 5,784 - 45471 1,702 1,720 1,708 - 70,395 - - 70,395
Exchange adusiments ~ [E:3% 246 101 - 9 1 1 i - 391 - - 391
Charge for the year KEENE 10,839 3,229 917 2,962 3,308 M8 760 - 22,293 - 283 2,576
Writen back on disposals ~ HERAR - - - (10) (344) (117) (214) - (685) - - (685)
At 31 Decemoer 2005 NZ551%
CREEEBM WM W MW My - wM - W e
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2005 i
+2A=1-H 556,278 1,47 64,57 90,982 10,141 2,559 8,514 358,760 1,163,052 262,194 76,045 1,501,291
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14.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) TH. BE&EE (&)
(a) The Group (continued) (a) NEE (&)
Inferest in
Leasehold Motor vehicles, leasehold land
improve- ~ electronic held for own
Tol Waste- ments,  equipment USe Under
bridge water fumitue ~ and other operating
ancilary ~ treatment Machinery  and fixtures ~fixed assets leases Total
Tol faclies ifrestuctre Land and ad  BEME  FEET  Constuction Ivestment BEEEHEE  fxed assels

bidge  MERR  SKRE  budngs  equpment  EEEE REREE  npogess  Slold  popetes  #fRAz  EREE
KERR  MERE  ARER  DURBT  BRRRE REE  EREE ERIE G REME REDHES |
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
S0 S0 S i i i i i T T T S

Cost or valuation; AAEARE:

At 1 January 2004 H_E5RE
-A-A 568,275 199% - 12099 1823 2811 2,184 - 716,085 217,264 - 933,349
Exchange adjustments L 3,030 13 - 3 2 2 10 - 3,09 - - 3,095
Additons iz
- through acauisiion -
of subsidiary HBLA = - - 1,126 179 - 584 - 1,889 - - 1,889
- others ~ifp - - - - 178 310 1,892 3,209 6,189 - - 6,189
Transfer 88 - - - 20 - - - S ) - -
Disposals il - - - - (28) - (497) - (5%) - - (5%)
Fairvalue adjustment D EHE - - - - - - - - - 14790 - 14790
A3 December 2004 H-FERE
LI 1 1 N ) S O 1 N1 SN .1 N . R - 1.
Representing; f&:
Cost A 571,306 20,009 - 124160 254 3123 4173 3209 128,133 - - 128,133
Valuaton - 2004 ftfe--%3mE - - - - - - - - - 00 - 00
571,305 20,009 - 124,160 2,154 3123 4173 3,209 728,733 230,054 - 958,787
Accumulated depreciation BitiTERE%:
and amortisation:
At 1 January 2004 -5
-A-A 5350 2,588 - 42814 1431 1421 1,612 - 55,28 - - 55,228
Exchange adusiments B3 10 ¥ - 1 1 - § - 52 - - 52
Through acoisiton el
of subsidiary B - - = 106 i) - 81 - 41 = - 4
Cagefortheyesr  AEERE BoM 3ibd S 0% 0 0 % - 588 : S 588
Writen back on disposals ~ HiER &R - - - - (17) - (s47) - (4p4) - - (4p4)
A3 December 004 R-FFLE
TRRETR M e - & e i e - - - T
Net book value: FHFE:
At 31 December 2004
557,301 14225 - 78,683 1,092 1403 246 3209 658,338 230,064 - 888,392
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14.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) +H. BEEE (&)
(b) The Company (b) AT
Machinery Furniture Total
and Leasehold and fixed
equipment improvements fixtures Motor assets
BER HENE AR vehicles EEEE
R %8 %E HE A
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Cost: BAE:

At 1 January 2005 i
—A-A 1,434 1,861 244 250 3,789
Additions g 81 - - 684 765
Disposals & (314) - (12) - (326)

At 31 December 2005 RZZERF
+-A=1+—H 1,201 1,861 232 934 4,228

Accumulated depreciation: Z&HE:

At 1 January 2005 R=ZETHE

—-A-R 1,270 1,242 192 188 2,892
Charge for the year KEERE 68 186 15 62 331
Written back on disposals HER AR (298) - (11) - (309)
At 31 December 2005 RZZZRE

+-A=+-FH 1,040 1,428 196 250 2,914
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2005 WZEZTRE

+-A=1+—H 161 433 36 684 1,314
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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14.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) TN BEEE (&)
(b) The Company (continued) (b) NN T (&)
Machinery Furniture Total
and Leasehold and fixed
equipment  improvements fixtures Motor assets
KER HENZE i vehicles ETEE
B B RE e s
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr T Fr T
Cost: BAfE:
At 1 January 2004 R_ZERF
—H—H 1,491 1,861 244 599 4,195
Additions ’E 39 - - - 39
Disposals HE (96) - = (349) (445)
At 31 December 2004 ik
T=AST-R e - I = . e
Accumulated depreciation: ~ RiHE:
At 1 January 2004 RZEZWEF
—H—H 1,230 1,056 177 198 2,661
Charge for the year AEEHE 78 186 15 77 356
Written back on disposals &R E (38) = - (87) (125)
At 31 December 2004 ik
t=A=t-8 10 1M 2 18260
Net book value: BERE:
At 31 December 2004 R-ZZMF
+-A=1—H 164 619 52 62 897
(c) Investment properties of the Group were revalued as at (c) NEFBZIEEYHEEDNR-E
31 December 2005 on an open market value basis TRE+=—A=+—HIRE
calculated by reference to net rental income allowing S ABFEA LA E RS UK
for reversionary income potential. The valuations were AMEtEZ A AFRTMEETE
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, RHL fy o E 1 By YB S BI E BT 5K
Appraisal Ltd., who have among their staff Association T EEEE B R A 7 #
of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent T EPR BT AEEHZRD
experience in the location and category of property being BeoS FHEHBHWE
revalued. FrAEth AN %R 516 3T FR(H (B A

Be
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14.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) +H. BEEE (&)
(d)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as (d) YVEEBREFEZZHMT:
follows:
The Group
rEE
2005 2004
—EZhHEF —ETNF
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
In the PRC G
Hong Kong: BB
— medium-term leases —FEE 65,932 =
— long leases —RHEE 106,200 154,583
Other parts of the PRC: FR [ EL fh 3 [
— medium-term leases —FEE 255,739 152,764
— long leases —RHEE 1,350 1,390
429,221 308,737
Representing: K&
Land and buildings T RIEF 90,982 78,683
Investment properties TEYE 262,194 230,054
353,176 308,737
Interest in leasehold land held BB EHER
for own use under fEE Bz S s
operating leases 76,045 -
429,221 308,737
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

14.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) T BE&EE (&)
(e)  Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (e) MRELLHESHEZEEE
-3
The Group leases out properties under operating leases. REERBKEAEHEY
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to ten ¥o PMHE T FHERE
years, with an option to renew the lease after that date NS EP—2+%F WalE
at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the BEY BRATEERES
leases includes contingent rentals. E¥EE] c LAMAEENE
EkEHE

All properties held under operating leases that would FrERBEEHERFFIEL
otherwise meet the definition of investment property are REREMEER I MFES

disclosed as investment property. WERIRE Y-
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under REBIRBE AT R A
non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as HETE B R ERE IR

follows: BT
The Group
rEE

2005 2004
—EERF —ETE
$°000 $°000
FiT Fr
Within 1 year —F R 6,309 8,127
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEBERFR 1,276 1,133
After 5 years hFi% 130 219
7,715 9,479
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15.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS TH. BEEE
The Group
Waste-water
treatment
concession
right
VEPIN ok
SRR
$'000
Fr
Cost: RAME:
At 1 January 2005 R_ZEZERF—HA—H =
Addition through acquisition FRWIEERILE
of business 34,548
At 31 December 2005 RZZEZERF+_H=1+—8H 34,548
Accumulated amortisation: HeE#sH:
At 1 January 2005 R-ZEZERF—HA—H -
Charge for the year NEEHEE 115
At 31 December 2005 R-ZZETRF+_-_A=+—H 115
Net book value: BRMERE:
At 31 December 2005 R-ZZETRF+_-_A=+—H 34,433
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “direct costs NEE#BTAGEBER B
and operating expenses” in the consolidated income statement. AR LB R Ae
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

16. GOODWILL T &8
The Group
ARE
Positive Negative
goodwill goodwill Total
EBHE g wmE
$'000 $'000 $'000
FiT T Fr
Cost: RAME:
At 1 January 2005 R-EZERF—H—H 48,855 (718) 48,137
Opening balance adjustment  HR¥4&5fR %L
to eliminate accumulated VASK 5 2 5+ 85
amortisation (2,722) - (2,722)
Opening balance adjustment  Hi#)4E AR LUREE
to derecognise to RE &
retained profits - 718 718
Addition through acquisition FRWIEERILE
of business 2,103 - 2,103
At 31 December 2005 R-EZERF+-_A=+—H 48,236 - 48,236
Accumulated amortisation: =~ R&H#gH:
At 1 January 2005 R-EZRF—A— 2,722 (38) 2,684
Eliminated against cost at RZETRF—H—
1 January 2005 DNk (2,722) = (2,722)
Opening balance adjustment  Hi¥I4E R TR LAURHZE
to derecognise to REBAF
retained profits - 38 38
At 31 December 2005 RZEERF+_A=1+—H = = =
Carrying amount: BRTEE:
At 31 December 2005 R-EZERF+-_A=+—H 48,236 - 48,236

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER



Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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16. GOODWILL (continued)

Cost:
At 1 January 2004

Additions through acquisition
of subsidiaries

At 31 December 2004

Accumulated amortisation:

At 1 January 2004
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2004

Carrying amount:

At 31 December 2004

ARAE:

R-ZEZWF—HA—H

FERRBHBEARIEE

R=ZEmFE+=A=1—8

Rt

R-ZEZWF—HA—H
NG

R=ZEmFE+=A=1—8

ARMEE:

R=ZEmFE+=A=+—8

In 2004, positive goodwill not already recognised directly in

reserves was amortised on a straight-line basis over 20 years.

The amortisation of positive goodwill for the year ended 31

December 2004 was included in “other operating expenses” in

the consolidated income statement.
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The Group
A%M

Positive Negative
goodwill goodwill Total
EHE auE e
$'000 $'000 $'000
FT FiT FiT
27,518 - 27,518
21,337 (718) 20,619
48,855 (718) 48,137
803 - 803
1,919 (38) 1,881
2,722 (38) 2,684
46,133 (680) 45,453

R-_TZME W RN HEEEERE
RZEBBREREND —+5H#
HBE_TTEMFE+_A=1—
BIEEEZ FRE#HEETALE
Bak [ EMEEER]A-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

16. GOODWILL (continued)

As explained further in note 2(a), with effect from 1 January
2005 the Group no longer amortises goodwill. In accordance
with the transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 3, the
accumulated amortisation of goodwill as at 1 January 2005 has
been eliminated against the cost of goodwill as at that date.
The negative goodwill has been derecognised at 1 January
2005 with a corresponding adjustment to the opening balance

of retained profits.

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing

goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGU”) identified according to business segment as follows:

Infrastructure investment and
operation (Toll bridge)

Environmental protection investment
and operation (Waste—water
treatment plants and
waste-to-energy power plant)

The recoverable amount of the respective CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five year period. Discount rates of
10% — 12% have been used for the value-in-use calculations.
Management determined the budgets based on independent
professional traffic studies and/or service agreements governing
the relevant operations. The discount rates used are pre-tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

_|_
\l’
A

. R (B

KT —(a)E— B B =%
TRFE-A—RAE AEETBH
HEE-RIB(BBMBRELEA)
EIRAHMBREGRBE—FTA
F-A—BZRFIRBEHERD
HZAZEBERARH-BREE
R-ZZERF—H— A M
R E B A E AR R R -

BEHEZRSEESEN 2 HEERA
=S

AREEREH DDA E TR

Rl RS EESBMIAT:
The Group
rEH
2005 2004
—22EHF —TENE
$°000 $'000
FiT Fr
EERENEE
(W EBR) 25,340 25,340
RIRIE R EE
CE7KEEER &
NIRRT BT RR)
22,896 20,793
48,236 46,133

B EEEN 2 IR B HERESE
AEENE SE T ERBREERE
EEZ AFHBKEEZRESRE
- ARGEFERERZME X
B10%ZE12% - BEERERIBEBLE
ERXBRERERNEEBME
Bz RS E EEaEEE FE
Az R ARBATAIRE R
BB D52 R
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17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES ++. WEARER

The Company

¥ NN

2005 2004
—B2FRF —TTF
$°000 $'000
Fi FIL

Unlisted shares/capital LW LB
contributions, at cost A ANME 388,642 407,842
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BB A B R IE 2,126,938 1,840,866
2,515,580 2,248,708
Less: impairment losses B FEE 1R (1,480,947) (1,484,684)
1,034,633 764,024
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTHY B A R F0E (56,408) (50,498)
978,225 713,526
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free FEUL (FERD) F B A BIFUA A
and not expected to be recovered within one year. e B RFEHTER —FRNEER.
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17.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and operation

Name of company B/ TR A

NEER RE Y

Everbright Water PRC
(Zibo) Limited* H
(“EB Water (Zibo)")

(note (a))

KAKE O1E) BRA A"
(AKX C68) 1)
(Hiit(a)

Fuzhou Guang Min PRC
Road and Bridge Lol
Construction &

Development
Company Limited
(“FZGM")*

BINEERBRR
REERAH
([EREE)*

On Land Limited Hong Kong

BRBRAR &

Qingdao EB-VW PRC
Waste Water H
Treatment Co., Ltd.

(“Qingdao EB-VW")#

EEARKER
BRAR
([ESKEL)*

Sino Villa Holdings British Virgin

Limited Islands
("BVI")/PRC

RERNES/

i

Suzhou SuNeng PRC
Waste-to-Energy Co. Ltd. H

(“Suzhou Suneng”)*
sNTRR A R EE

BRAR

(&R MARRE])*

Particulars of
issued and paid
up capital
ERTR
BRREER
RMB96,816,370
ARE
96,816,3707C

RMB224,730,000
N
224,730,0007T

2 shares of $1 each
2R EREE
1T
RMB126,331,107
ARE
126,331,1077C

1 share of US$1
1REREE
1ETRG

RMB141,943,349
AR
141,943,3497C

Tt WEBQAER (B

A TMES M AREB RS BEX
BEBKEIEXEZHEBARE
FroBr B AERIN RN RE
e

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERERLA

Group’s
effective
interest
XEEZ
ERER

100%

Note (b)
Fizt(b)

100%

Note (c)
fii(c)

100%

Note (d)
Hiit(a)

* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment

enterprise.

#  Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign co-operative

joint venture.

Company
HAAH

held by

the held by
a subsidiary

HNELR
53] 53]

= 100%

Principal
activity
TEXH

Operation and
maintenance of
waste-water
treatment plants
LERBBRE
KR

- Note (b)
Wizt (b)

Development,
construction,
operation and
maintenance of
a toll bridge
RE g
BEREERE
R

- 100%  Property investment

NERE

Note (c)
i (c)

Construction,
operation and
maintenance of
waste-water
treatment plants
Bk BEREE
RETKEER
Property investment

NERE

100% =

- Note (d)
Hit(a)

Design, construction,
operation and
management of
waste-to-energy
power plant

Rt s 2ER
BEERNEREEER

Y IRIBBEER M R IR A

t REBEHELEEM BT INEER &
PE-
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17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 1 December 2005, EB Water (Zibo) acquired the waste-
water treatment business together with the corresponding
assets and liabilities from Zibo Finance Bureau and Zibo
Environmental Waste Water Treatment Company (“the
Transferors") at a consideration of RMB224,055,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$214,891,000). In addition, pursuant to a
concession right agreement, EB Water (Zibo) was granted the
exclusive right to operate the waste-water treatment plants to
provide waste water treatment service in certain specified areas
in Zibo city, the PRC for a period of 25 years commencing from
December 2005. Upon expiry of the concession period,
EB Water (Zibo) will cease to have any rights and obligations
under the concession right agreement and the assets acquired
as referred to above will be transferred back to the Transferors.

The waste-water treatment plants are expected to have
aggregate daily capacity of 220,000 tonnes. The waste-water
treatment revenue charged by EB Water (Zibo) is governed by
the relevant waste water treatment service agreement. During
the concession period, EB Water (Zibo) has the obligation to
promptly repair or upgrade the waste-water treatment facilities
and equipment.

Greenway Venture Limited (“Greenway”), an 80% owned
subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint venture partner
of FZGM, is committed to contribute the full amount of FZGM’s
registered capital. Net profit (after payment of an agreed sum
ranging from RMB600,000 to RMB2,500,000 annually to the
PRC joint venture partner of FZGM) of FZGM should first be
applied for the repayment of capital and advances made by
Greenway. After the capital and advances made by Greenway
have been fully repaid, the net profit of FZGM (after payment of
an agreed sum to the PRC joint venture partner mentioned
above) is to be shared by Greenway and the PRC joint venture
partner on a 90:10 basis.

Pursuant to the joint venture agreement of FZGM, FZGM was
granted a right to construct, operate and maintain a toll bridge
in Fuzhou city, the PRC. After the completion of the toll bridge
construction, FZGM has an operating period of the toll bridge
for a period of 30 years commencing from January 2003. Upon
expiry of the operating period, FZGM will transfer all the fixed
assets and the operating right to the PRC joint venture partner.
The toll fee is based on the type of vehicles and it is subject to
the approval from the relevant local government authorities.
During the operating period, FZGM has the obligation to
maintain the toll bridge in good condition.
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17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

EB-VW HK Holding Company Limited (“EB-VW”), an 60% owned
subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint venture partner
of Qingdao EB-VW, is committed to contribute 60% of Qingdao
EB-VW's registered capital. The remaining 40% registered
capital is contributed by the PRC joint venture partner, by way
of transferring waste-water treatment plants to Qingdao EB-VW.
EB-VW is fully entitled to the net profit of Qingdao EB-VW for
the first 14 years of the joint venture period. From the 15th year
of the joint venture period onwards, the net profit of Qingdao
EB-VW is to be shared by EB-VW and the PRC joint venture
partner on a 98:2 basis.

Pursuant to a waste-water treatment agreement, Qingdao
EB-VW will provide the PRC joint venture partner with design,
construction, maintenance and operation services for waster-
water treatment facilities and the provision of waste-waster
treatment services in Qingdao, the PRC for a period of 25 years
commencing from January 2005. Furthermore, Qingdao EB-VW
is obliged to construct extension of the existing facilities.

Upon expiry of joint venture agreement, the fixed assets of
Qingdao EB-VW will be transferred to the PRC joint venture
partner. The waste-water treatment plants are expected to have
aggregate daily capacity of 220,000 cubic metre. The waste-
water treatment revenue charged by Qingdao EB-VW is
governed by the relevant waste water treatment agreement.
During the joint venture period, Qingdao EB-VW has the
obligation to maintain the waste-water treatment facilities in
good condition.

Everbright Environmental Energy (Suzhou) Investment Limited
(“EB Energy (Suzhou)”, formerly known as Starland Resources
Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
foreign joint venture partner of Suzhou Suneng, is committed
to contribute the full amount of Suzhou Suneng’s registered
capital. Net profit of Suzhou Suneng, after payment of an agreed
sum of RMB880,000 annually to the PRC joint venture partner,
is fully attributable to EB Energy (Suzhou).

Pursuant to a concession right agreement, Suzhou Suneng will
design, construct, operate and manage a waste-to-energy
power plant to provide waste treatment service in Suzhou city,
the PRC for a period of 25 years. Upon expiry of the concession
period, the waste-to-energy power plant and related facilities
will be transferred to the PRC joint venture partner. The waste-
to-energy power plant is expected to have a daily capacity of
1,000 tonnes. The waste treatment service fee charged by
Suzhou Suneng is governed by the relevant concession right
agreement. During the concession period, Suzhou Suneng has
the obligation to maintain the waste-to-energy power plant in
good condition.
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18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES T\ BEATER
The Group The Company
AEH RAT
2005 2004 2005 2004
“ETHE —TENFE ZSTRE _—TTQNF
$°000 $000 $°000 $°000
Fr FiT Fr Fir
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR R AE - = 205,199 205,199
Share of net assets Fiih & E %58 413,304 435,479 - =

413,304 435,479 205,199 205,199

The following list contains only the particulars of associates, all LATNESI H S AR E A B R
of which are unlisted corporate entities, which principally REZFEHERT (BHAIEL
affected the results or assets of the Group. MEFEER) Ekfo

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERELH
Place of
Form of Incorporation/ Group’s held by
business establishment effective the held by
structure and operation interest Company subsidiaries Principal

Name of company ERER  BMAYL/RIR rEEZ HAAR HBKEAR activity

AR AR g L ERER =] 5H TEEH

Newton Industrial Limited Incorporated BVI/PRC 44.12% 44.12% - Investment holding
(“Newton”) (note) Ay RBRZEE/TH REER
(FizE)

Qingdao Veolia Water Established PRC 21% - 21% Operation of
Operating Company AV HE waste-water
Limited treatment plants
BERVIEKEEEERAA 2EHKEER

Note: Newton holds an 34% equity interest in Shenzhen Mawan Power HfiE: NewtoniF A RINIFEE H AR

Company Limited, a sino-foreign joint venture established in REN(—HKRFRBIKL 2 FoNG

the PRC which currently operates two power plants in Shenzhen, ) 34% AR 2 A A

the PRC. BT BERYIE EMKREE
g o
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18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) +N\. BE QAT ER (B)

Additional combined financial information in respect of the

Group’s associates is given as follows:

BRAAREEE QR 2RI G
BERIT:

2005 2004
—EBEALF —TTF
(restated)
(E3R)
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
(i) Operating results (i) KA EE
Turnover &R 18,800 70,571
Depreciation e - 13
Profit before taxation Rt AT & A 154,255 219,306
Profit after taxation krEi1% & T 154,255 194,975
Group’s share of profits after REEFGEE ARZ
taxation for the year attributable REZRTEER
to associates 68,045 80,214
Group’s share of valuation gains PN SE) NG|
on investment properties KEMEGERER
attributable to associates - 4,294
2005 2004
—EELF —TTF
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
(i)  Balance sheet (iy HBEAGBR
Non-current assets IEREEE 935,314 985,860
Current assets MBEE 4,671 2,354
Current liabilities mEEE (2,045) (60)
Net assets BEFH 937,940 988,154
Group’s share of net assets RE BTN
attributable to associates DR BEFE 413,304 435,479

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS +h. Rt EEE
The Group The Company
rEE VAN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EERFE —ZENFE C—EFTRE —“ZITOF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fir Fr Frr
Available-for-sale equity FERAES
securities:
- Listed in Hong Kong —BBLEm 38,282 32,813 - -
— Unlisted outside Hong Kong ~ —&BAIMEE
JEET 13,649 13,649 13,649 13,649
51,931 46,462 13,649 13,649
Market value of listed securities &% 2 mE 38,282 29,471 = =
20. DEBTORS, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 4. ERERF-HEWFIE-RER
PREPAYMENTS FEIFIE

Included in trade, other receivables, deposits and prepayments
of the Group are trade debtors of $14,343,000 (2004:
$4,571,000), of which $4,595,000 (2004: Nil) is due from a
minority shareholder. The trade debtors are current and not yet
due for payment and represent toll bridge revenue and waste-

water treatment revenue which are settled on a monthly basis.

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 30(a).
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21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS ~t-. BEBBRITER
The amounts are pledged to secure certain bank loans of the ZERBEEER (ERAREES
Group. TFRITER 2 ERme
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS I BERREEEY
The Group The Company
AEH PN
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EE2RE —TTNF —BERFE —TTOF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr F
Deposits with bank RITER 215,946 458,905 198,203 439,819
Cash at bank and in hand BITHESBEES 192,620 113,453 30,204 4,184
408,566 572,358 228,407 444,003

REBZRERRSEFEMERET
SRR AR E R 2 et B

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet

date are the following amounts denominated in a currency other

than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate: LAON B# BB :
The Group The Company
rEH NG|
2005 2004 2005 2004
—ZEHF ZTNFE —EEHFE —ETEF
$°000 $'000 $°000 $000
Fr Fir T T
United States Dollars Ein USsD10,809 uSD8 USD21 uSD8
10,8093 T 8%TT AEYH 8%7T

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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23. SECURED BANK LOANS ZtI FERBITER
At 31 December 2005, the secured bank loans were repayable RZEZERF+-_A=+—H'A&
as follows: EIRRITE R Z B HE T :
The Group The Company
rEE NG

2005 2004 2005 2004

—E2BRE _"TTWF —TBRE _"TITOAF

$°000 $000 $°000 $000

Fr T Fr T

Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIRER 40,227 62,450 31,429 62,429
After 1 year but within —FREMEA

2 years 55,607 8,218 6,429 6,429
After 2 years but within MERERFA

5 years 218,764 62,479 19,286 19,286

After 5 years HF% 297,645 234,141 4,821 11,249

572,016 304,838 30,536 36,964

612,243 367,288 61,965 99,393

At 31 December 2005, the banking facilities of the Group are RZZEZERF+_A=1+—H 'K

secured by revenue from the operations of toll bridge, waste- SEZRITRHE AL 2N EBRBR L

water treatment plants and waste-to-energy power plant, bank WA V57K BB R e b SRR G2 25 R

deposits, mortgages on fixed assets and shares of a subsidiary A RITER BEEERBR

of the Company. Such banking facilities, amounting to REBEM B R FRMDERF-R=

$975,180,000 (2004: $534,432,000), were utilised to the extent TEERF+ _A=+—8 Lu

of $612,243,000 (2004: $367,288,000) at 31 December 2005. 975,180,000 (ZEZ M4 :

534,432,0007T) ZEITRE E A
612,243,0007C (—ZEZ P4
367,288,0007T) °

24. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS TR0 BN BRRMIE
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable within EERIBAEERR 2B RER—
one year. FAEE-
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25.

26.

CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Included in creditors, other payables and accrued expenses
of the Group is an amount of $1,393,000 (2004: Nil) which is
payable to an associate. The balance is due within one month
and represents service fee for operation of waste-water
treatment plants.

Apart from the above, there are other payables to related
companies and a minority shareholder of $32,012,000 (2004
Nil) and $18,756,000 (2004: Nil) respectively as at 31 December
2005. The amounts are unsecured, interest free and expected
to be settled within one year.

LOANS FROM AND AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

(a) Loans from ultimate holding company

The Group

At 31 December 2005, the loans are unsecured, interest
bearing at 4.9% to 5% (2004: 1.8% to 5%) per annum
and not expected to be settled within one year, except
for a loan of $95,148,000 (2004: $93,501,000) which is
interest free. The interest rates are generally based on
Hong Kong Interbank Offering Rate or London Interbank
Offering Rate plus 0.8% to 1.1% (2004: plus 1.1% to
1.3%).

S,

PR IR At B RROR R ST
BH

REE 2 FERBRER B FRIR
REGBRARBEE—EENT—X
B\ \) 2 /I8 1,393,0007¢ (==
PO ) o Z AR —E A R E
HY H A& 5 KRIE M 2 BRIEE

B EXFTIEINR_ZEZERF+
ZA=Et+—RH ARREEENT
BN E Rk — B DB R 2 B b
NFRIE £% 5 51432,012,0007T
(ZZZT M4 : &) £ 18,756,0007T
(ZETHF &) R EREAER
A o8 WHEHAR —FAXZTe

A RREBRQXAERREMNRR

IR A RHE

all

(a) BRERARER

rEE

RIEZRF+A=+—
H BT —EHSEA
95,148,0007T (ZEZH4F:
93,501,0007T) Z B AR
BON W EEFAEER 1
FERKL 9% EE% (T BT
PU4F: 1.8%%25%) 515 KT8
HTrgR—FAEE B
— IR B BRI TRIZERF 23k
RBERTT R ZEHF B IM0.8%
E1.1% (ZZZMFE: N
1.1%%1.3%) 5t &
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26. LOANS FROM AND AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING It BRERERAFDERREMNRR

COMPANY (continued) ERDBNREA (8)

(a) Loans from ultimate holding company (continued) () BAREBRATER (E)
The Company KR E]
At 31 December 2005, the loans are unsecured, interest RIZBEZERAF+—_A=1+—
bearing at 4.9% to 5% (2004: 1.8% to 5%) per annum B W EERAEER RF
and not expected to be settled within one year. The FE4 9% EE% (ZEF Y
interest rates are generally based on Hong Kong F:1.8%%E5%) 71 B R TEH
Interbank Offering Rate or London Interbank Offering TER—FAEERE-FE—
Rate plus 0.8% to 1.1% (2004: plus 1.1% to 1.3%). MAREBRITRIZER Sk fA

HIRITRIZEFREN0.8%E
1.1% (ZZEZWF:I01.1%
£1.3%) 5T 8-

Included in loans from ultimate holding company are the REZERABERBIE T
following amounts denominated in a currency other than IE - H LMH FAER G

the functional currency of the entity to which they relate: BEAIIN B R

The Group The Company
TEE NG

2005 2004 2005 2004
“EERE _—TTMFE C—BFIF _—TTNMF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr T Fr T
United States dollars E USD43,886 USD43,886  USD43,886 USD43,886

43,8867t 43,886k, 43,886t 43,886 %T

(b)  Amount due to ultimate holding company (b) ENRAZERARRE
At 31 December 2004, the amount due to ultimate R-FTNF+ZA=1+—
holding company was unsecured and interest free. It was A BN R A RIFOR
repaid during 2005. AEERRES - EERZ

ETRFRER-

(c)  Continuous financial support () HEAMBXE
The ultimate holding company has given an undertaking REERARIEAHEG TA
to provide the Company with adequate financial support. NR] RS I TSR
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27. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:

Provision for PRC income tax AREFZRBEPTS TR
for the year
Provisional tax paid B TERFTS

Tt BERBERZFAEHR

(a) BEREXRFATIAHBE

The Group
AEM

2005 2004
—EERF —ZTE
$°000 $'000

Fr T

4,748 1,211
(2,610) (1,113)
2,138 98

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER
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(BB BTHN FTEELBEUBYAE)

27. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The Group

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

movements during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 January 2004
Charged to profit or loss

At 31 December 2004

At 1 January 2005

Addition through acquisition
of business

(Credited)/charged to profit
or loss

At 31 December 2005

ERLRIARE:

R-_ZZHRF—F—H
ERWIBESILE

mRmEH GTA) ik

Al
o A
=y
<FH

IR
|4
[1]
T
m
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(b)

ERAELHREERAER

AL

ERRABERABRER
EETUE (BE) /BESHD

NAREEESHINT
Depreciation
allowances in
excess of
related
depreciation  Revaluation
HBEEBEITEZ  of properties Total
HERBE MIEE L HeE
$'000 $'000 $000
T T T
206 18,947 19,153
1,078 591 1,669
1,284 19,538 20,822
1,284 19,538 20,822
(356) - (356)
(17,760) 1,194 (16,566)
(16,832) 20,732 3,900
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27. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(continued)

Net deferred tax assets recognised RirAEEBBRERLZ
on the consolidated balance sheet  IEIEFIIH & & %5

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R4r& EE B ERERLZ
on the consolidated balance sheet  IEEFIEA EF58

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(q), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
of $26,033,000 (2004: $32,730,000) in respect of
cumulative tax losses as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

The tax losses do not expire under current tax legislation.

Tt BERBERZHAEH (@)

(b) CHEIBEHRTEERER

(&)
The Group
rEH
2005 2004
—EERF —ZTE
$°000 $'000
Fr T
(16,832) -
20,732 20,822
3,900 20,822

(c) ARERELEHREEE

BB E—(q) FTE 2 &5
BUR ANEE W EERHR
FT AR B RLER IEE
££26,033,0007T (===
%: 32,730,0007T) ' R E &
EEBHG R A ER R EE
A AT BE RS B FR A & A1
LHRBAERNER-RIE
WATBISARA] - Lk eT 330
BB TR e AR A
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28.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 26 May 2003 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options at nominal consideration to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The exercise price of options is the highest of the
nominal value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant and the average closing price
of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The options are
exercisable six months (or a later date as determined by the
directors of the Company) after the date on which the options
are granted for a period up to ten years or 25 May 2013,
whichever is earlier. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during
the year are as follows, whereby all options are settled
by physical delivery of shares:

it J1§

URB XN 2BRAERS
ARBHRE—EBBESE ER

“EE=FRAZ+BERMAE
It ARREETREEARBAUE
AEERE (BRAKEEIAKE
RAZES) BRI RREANRE
FRRE AN B BUD 2 P A - B A
TEEARMEE RONELA
HETEBMARHABRAT) (15
R 2 BB EEE LA
HA R0 (82 5 BB R Pz I
mE (ARSERE) BRESK
HBEIEANEA (RARBESR
EZBEAH) AR R EITER
BEREFRZETFRE_F—
SERAZTRBALEUUREER
%) -BRIBEEE T ERSBARE
— IR R E B R

(@ TXHEINFARKITEZRE
P 2 % kA6 R R MR A 1B
it BB B A HE AR D B D

RWTAEE R
Contractual
life of
Number of options
instruments Vesting conditions BREZ
XE#E 4 R BHREH
Options granted to directors:
RYEFE 2 BIRE
—on 29 September 2003 49,700,000  Six months from the date of grant 9.2 years
—ZET=FNA=-TNAH X H B #RE < EA 9.2%F
—on 29 September 2003 49,700,000 One year from the date of grant 8.7 years
——ET=FNA=-+NAH B B ERE— 5 8.7
Options granted to employees:
RTES 2 BRE
—on 29 September 2003 4,500,000 Six months from the date of grant 9.2 years
—ZET=FNA-TNAH X H B #RE < EA 9.2%F
—on 29 September 2003 4,500,000 One year from the date of grant 8.7 years
——ZEE=FAA-TIA B B —F 8.7
Total share options 108,400,000

AR R
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28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options are as follows:

Outstanding at the Y RITE
beginning of the period

Exercised during the period BB 1T

Lapsed during the period EAESA

Outstanding at the end of B RTTHE
the period

Exercisable at the end of HR#& ] P 178
the period

Weighted
average
exercise

price
hEF
fTEEE

$0.296

N BBRBXHZBRAERS (#)

(b) EBREREZEE MnEFET

(VIR
2005 2004
“E2TEHE —ETME
Weighted
average
Number of exercise  Number of
options price options
T
BRERE TEE BREHA
108,400,000 $0.296 109,400,000
(3,000,000) $0.296 (500,000)

$0.296
$0.296

$0.296

$0.296

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise

for shares options exercised during the year was $0.45

(2004: not applicable). The options outstanding at 31
December 2005 had an exercise price of $0.296 (2004:
$0.296) and a weighted average remaining contractual

life of 7.4 years (2004: 8.4 years).

- $0.296 (500,000)

105,400,000 $0.296 108,400,000

105,400,000 $0.296 108,400,000

FRBITEBRERITEH
HR 2 hn#E 1A AR B R0.457T
(ZZETWEF RERA) R
EERF+A=1+—8H
RITEZEBREZITEER
0.2967T (ZZZ Y4 :0.296
7T) MANETHEBR T A 8F
HB A7 4F (ZEZNF:
8.44F) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES ZH R BRA R A
(@) The Group (a) ZAK£H
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KAARRELR
Reserve/
(goodwil Revaluation

arising on reserve of (Accumulated

consolidation Capital ~ land and losses)

Ei ] tedemption  buildings retained

Share  Share  Special  E4Y
captll  premium  reseve e/
Bx  BAEE HEEE  (B9)
$000 $000 $000 $000
S S S S

At 1 January 2004 R-EEME-A-A 24831 2817219 - 8177
Shares issued under BEERE ST
share option scheme R 50 % - -

Reduction of share HIRR A (ER

premium - (312113 - -
Share of capial resene  FTEBEDFEAGE

of associate - - - 905
Share of exchange HEEE S

reseves of associates - - - -
Bxchange diferences  AEMELFR

on ranslation of RELHHER

financial statements EE7ERER

of subsidiaries

and associates = = - -

Capialesenverealised ~ WBAFREMER
on iquidaton of S

subsidiary - - = (65 )
Exchange reserves HEBENTTER

realised on disposal LEREE

of associate = - - -
Profifor the year RERRA - = = -
Acquistion of non-wholly &2 EHERA

owned subsidiary = = - -
Capita contrbuton FRENBATNE

recelved bynon-wholy SRR 2R

owned subsidiary from

minority sharholder - - - -
Dividend paid to BT ahR RS

minority shareholder = = - -

Dividend declared in KEERSHRE
espectoftecurent (i)

Exchange  reserve IR Fairvale  Reserve profits
feserve A BT resene fund (Z3tEE) / Total

Minority Total
interests equity

EXff WERE ERRE ORERE  BRe  REER AE JUBREE  REME

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
S8 S8 o8 o8 o8 i i

m now - - IN46) 10003%
- - - - - - 148
- - - - - oam -
: = = = = - %

a0 - - - - -

1471 - - - - -
: = = = = - ()

86 = = = = - ()

: - = - - 86,776 86,776

$000 $000
T T

- 1000,3%

= 148

- 1411

- )

-

(©8) 8218

3 3B

4260 4260

(66)  (566)

Jear (e 1) - : : : : - - - S(01B)  (101%) S %)
Transfer o special ERERDIRR
eserve - - 112016 - - - - - - (112016) - - -
A3 December 2004 H-FERE
t-f=1-8 204881 445004 112,016 58,527 1677 10 A3 - - 20634 1078942 3194 1,082,136
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R RM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) “th.BRAEKREE (&)
(@) The Group (continued) (a) ZA£HE &)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KLRRRERE
Reserve/
(goodwill Revaluation
arising on reserve of
consolidation Capital ~land and
Ei ] tedemption  buildings
Share  Share  Special  E4Z  Exchange  reseve  1HR  Farvalue  Reserve  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium  reserve reserve X BF7 resene fund  profits Total  interests equity
Re  ROEE GEEE 0 BR) ENRE  WERE  EGEE OABRE  BEE  REEN 8% JuRFER
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r i i i i r r r r fr r fr i
At 1 January 2005 R-EE0E-A-A 254,881 445,204 112,016 h8,521 1,677 10 43 - - 2634 1078942 3,194 1,082,136
Opening balance THRE BEARE:
adjustments in
respect of.
-negatie qoodwil - BEE (A= (a))
(102 22) - : - ) - - - - - g 80 - 80
- finencialinstuments— ~ $BTE (HE=(b)
(nate 2(b)) - - - - - - - - - (3342) (3342) - (3342)
At 1 January 2005, W-55RE-A-R
after opening bl et
balance adjusiments 254,881 5004 112016 (12614) 1677 10 43 - - 214803 1,076,280 3,194 1079474
Diidend approved i~ £EEEHERS
respect of the (H1)
previous year (note 11) - - - - - - - - - (1528)  (15,298) - (1529)
Shares issued under BEEREEE
share option scheme R (W= TA(c)i)
(rote 29 0 58 - - - - - - - - % - 8%
Share of exchange MEBERAES R
Teserves of associates - - - - 9,598 - - - - - 9,508 - 9,508
Exchange diferences ~ BERBATR
on ranslafon of RELHBER
financial satements ET/ESEE
of subsidiaries
and associates - - - - 8,868 - - - - - 8,668 - 8,668
Revaluation reserve HETHRETHER
realised on cisposal LERRE
of land and buldings - - - - - - (243) - - 13 - - -
Changesinfairvaleof — FEZFAAERS
avallable-for-sale
securities - - - - - - - 8611 - - 8611 - 8611
Proitfor the year KEEEA - - - - - - - - - 105330 105330 15514 120844
Trensfertoresenve fund ~ EEZRES - - - - - - - - 340 (3740) - - -
Share of reserve by HERRERERER
minoriy interests - - - - (2314) - - - - - (2314) 2314 -
Capita contibutions FRENBATNE
received bynon-wholly SRR 2R
owned subsidiaries from
minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - 71,881 71,881
Dividend paid fo B FHERE R
minarity shareholder - - - - - - - - - - - (575) (575)
Dividend declared in KEERERRE
fespect of the current (Hitt-)
year (10 11) - - - - - - - - - (B3 (153 - 13
Transfer fiom special g2a5iRk
reserve (note 29(di) (=T A0)i) - - (686) - - - - - - 686 - - -
A3 December 2005 W-55RE
t-f=1-8 206,181 445792 111330 (12614) 17829 10 - 8,811 3740 346718 1,176,857 92328 1,269,185
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

“th.BAREE (8

(b) The Company (b) AT
(Accumulated
Capital loss)/
redemption retained
Share Share Special reserve profit
capital  premium reserve Ex (RitER)/ Total
B REOEE  WERE FORE  REEA m
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i i i T
At 1 January 2004 RZE2ZEE—F—H 254,831 2,817,279 = 70 (2,381,869) 690,311
Reduction of share BRI (DR B
premium - (2,372,173) - - 2,372,173 -
Shares issued under  RIFEEMREAE
share option scheme ~ E{7f& (7 50 98 = - - 148
Profit for the year TEEEF - - - - 152,687 152,687
Dividend declared in MEEEERKRE
respect of the current (At 1—)
year (note 11) - - - - (10,193) (10,193)
Transfer to special ERERRIRE
reserve - - 112,016 - (112,016) -
At31December 2004 ~ RZZTTME
+-A=1+-H 254,881 445,204 112,016 70 20,782 832,953
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) The Company (continued)

At 1 January 2005
Dividend approved
in respect of the
previous year (note11)
Shares issued under
share option scheme
Profit for the year
Dividend declared in
respect of the current
year (note 11)
Transfer from special
reserve (note 29(d)(ii))

At 31 December 2005

R-FThF-A-H
EEEERERE
(Bt +-)

REER S
ki

AEERMN

AEEEERMRE
(WaEt—)

HREERIRE
(HizE=+A(d)ii)

“th.BAREE (8

(b) AAT (&)
Capital
redemption
Share Share Special reserve Retained
capital premium reserve Bx profit Total
B BipEE RhlRE RO#E  REEA a%
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i i i i
254,881 445,204 112,016 70 20,782 832,953
- - - - (15,293) (15,293)
300 588 - - - 888
- - - - 107,778 107,778
- - - - (15,311) (15,311)
- - (686) - 686 -
255,181 445,792 111,330 70 98,642 911,015

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER



Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) ZHh.BRAEK e (&)
()  Share capital () EB=R
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i)  EERBETRA
2005 2004
—EBAE —ETPMF
No. of No. of
shares shares
% &5 R &
000 $°000 ‘000 $'000
TR Fi Fhig Fr
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of BAREE0.107T
$0.10 each ZERR 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000 500,000
Ordinary shares, BER
issued and EBTR
fully paid: BEHE:
At 1 January R—A—H 2,548,812 254,881 2,548,312 254,831
Shares issued under IR BRI 2
share option scheme 8172 D 3,000 300 500 50
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 2,551,812 255,181 2,548,812 254,881
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TmBEE ABRER
receive dividends as declared from time to time BARERZKRE
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings WA A EIRNE L]
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally RERERNEE—F
with regard to the Company’s residual assets. KR -BARAZ

RSBEEMS A
EBRREERSHE

Ao
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Notes to the Financial Statements

i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BB BTZHN TELBEABYE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

ZHh.BRA K (8

(c)

MR (&)

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme (i)  WRIRBBAREFEIETT
R 17
On 20 May 2005, options were exercised to R_EZETRFRA-
subscribe for 3,000,000 ordinary shares in the TH BREREA
Company at a consideration of $888,000 of which TEERE RBE
$300,000 was credited to share capital and the 3,000,000% A5/ &)
balance of $588,000 was credited to the share TEakR - RER
premium account. 888,000 HH
300,0007TE sE ABX
A $T7588,0007T
BllEE ARR 5 5 ERR
(iii)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share (i) RAEEH EARERR
options at balance sheet date AR TIEZ FER A~
&1
2005 2004
Exercise —EZhHEF —ZTE
Exercise period price Number Number
fT1EH TEE £ Eg=
29 March 2004 to —TENFE=A=+1H
25 May 2013 ET =%
EA=-+HH $0.296 52,700,000 54,200,000
29 September 2004 —ZEEWMFEAA -+ HH
to 25 May 2013 ET =%
HEA=-+HH $0.296 52,700,000 54,200,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Further
details of these options are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements.

105,400,000 108,400,000

GAREEAER T E
BAARE—RAR
AIEER RN A
AR 2 — &
R 5 RaR aE
iy A

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) TR K #EE (E)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (d) RFEHEERBD
(i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve ()  BROBERERERD
]
The application of the share premium account Mt BER B AR
and the capital redemption reserve is governed Elf#EE Aign Rl
by Sections 48B and 49H respectively of the Hong O QN =T I S
Kong Companies Ordinance. B) & H+ AB &
REM+ AH ER
"l’é‘ o
(i) Special reserve (i)  EHIFEE

On 5 January 2004, the Company announced its
intention to put forward a proposal for the
reduction of the Company’s share premium
account by the sum of $2,372,172,824 (i.e.
accumulated losses of the Company as at 30
September 2003) and the application of the same

RZZFTNF—AR
SRRANNCI VNGRS
REZZ HIBEAR
| & R B R
2,372,172,8247T
(ARRBE=F

amount of credit arising from such reduction E=FNA=1+HZ
towards the elimination of the accumulated losses ZEHEE) W H
of the Company. The reduction of share premium B = B RRFTEE A
account, approved by the shareholders at the ZA—BFEERESE
extraordinary general meeting held on 2 February AREHEARRRIZ R
2004, was confirmed by an order made by the sTETE - BB AR 17 &

High Court of Hong Kong (“the Court”) on 2 March
2004 and became effective upon registration of
the said order by the Registrar of Companies in

Hong Kong on the same date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(ii) Special reserve (continued)

To safeguard the interests of the Company’s
creditors, the Company undertakes to the Court
to create a special reserve upon the reduction of
share premium account on the terms set out
below:

(i) that for so long as there shall remain
outstanding any debt of or claim against the
Company which, if the date on which the
reduction of the share premium account of the
Company (“the Effective Date”) were the
commencement of the winding-up of the
Company, would be admissible to proof in
such winding-up and the person entitled to
the benefit thereof shall not have consented
to the said reduction of share premium
account or agreed otherwise, the Company
shall credit to a special reserve in the books
of the Company (“the Special Reserve”):

— any amount arising by reason of a release
of any provision taken into account in
establishing the accumulated losses of the
Company shown in the balance sheet of
the management accounts of the
Company for the nine months ended 30
September 2003; or

ZHh.BRA K (8

(d)

REEEREN (B)
(i)  FRIEE (&)

RTRERRRIERE
AZ s R R B[R
SEBT M RS RO H
LR A7 (B AR R AR L
— (%5 Bl A - 153K
s

(i) R A2 FIHIR
P £ (B R A 28
Z B ([E£#%AE
1) (F%B A
ENNSIVEL: SGE
B) REMLAEE
fAIARBEERHL
RTHEBR M
HEEBHAR
RARAFRE
HZAEMNE
B BEARESR
Z NET K
AEE L HR
B 1 (B Bk =
B RIARRBEE
ET B HTA
AREERE 2%
Rl (TR RIRE
) T

- A#EEE
PN N/NCTR:2
E-EET=
FNA=T
B 1k E A
ZEIRER R
RrEBEESB
&R W T~
2 EBEL
F {77 £ 18 BT
EECE5E:
K

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) TR K #EE (E)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) RFEEEREN E)
(i)  Special reserve (continued) (i)  FHIEE (&)
(i) (continued) (iy (&)

— any amount received by the Company as — RRQRHK—
profit by way of distribution from a E/NS L :)
corporation which was a subsidiary or an FrigtE R nD
associated company of the Company at DI P

the Effective Date (a “subsidiary” or an
“associated company” respectively) which
is made by such subsidiary or associated
company out of profits available for
distribution prior to the Effective Date or
any dividend paid to the Company in
respect of any liquidation of a subsidiary
or an associated company commencing
prior to the Effective Date; and

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report

= ERAA
R A
CEING L
B2 A
ER7 (D5
TR T B
2GIEAE
BRF))
ISV
e 45 8 I I
AR
RANME
% B AT
5 R 2 &
XN A
AR BE R
B 59 51 2 B
4B BT E
ZHBA
St A A
U BR 745
BE: R



Notes to the Financial Statements
R RM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) ZHh.BRAEK e (&)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) REMERENE)
(i)  Special reserve (continued) (i)  HIERE (&)
(i) the Special Reserve: (ii) FrRlFEME:
— shall not be treated as realised profits of - TNEHERA
the Company; and RKAAlzZE
FHRAHN R
— shall, for so long as the Company shall - REAXRRT
remain a limited company, be treated as TRERA
an undistributable reserve of the Company Al RIBAF]
for the purposes of the Companies 1651 (FREEA
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of the REMBEEF
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region 7 % Al 17 X
of the People’s Republic of China) or any EEBE32
statutory modification or re-enactment ) SOEBIR
thereof. 7E gt H AT {E
2 E A& K
HIEFT B JE
WHRBRRD
Al 2 A 5
I fE
Provided always that: HE:
(1) the Special Reserve may be applied for the (1) B Rli# ] B
same purposes as a share premium account ARG ®E
may lawfully be applied; R & ER%E:

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER



Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(ii) Special reserve (continued)

(2) the amount standing to the credit of the
Special Reserve may be reduced by an
amount equal to any increase, after the
Effective Date, in the share premium account
of the Company which results from an issue
of shares (other than for the purposes of any
redemption or purchase by the Company of
its own shares) for cash or other consideration
or by way of the capitalisation of distributable
profits or reserves, and the Company shall be
at liberty to transfer the amount so reduced
to the general reserves of the Company and
the same shall become available for
distribution;

(3) the amount credited to the Special Reserve
in accordance with the foregoing provisions
of this undertaking shall not at any time
exceed $1,762,999,500 (“the Limit”");

CHINA EVERBRIGHT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 2005 Annual Report
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(i)  FRIEE (&)
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(3)

FrhlEEERS
B2 AI A5 ARG - B
BAEERAH
% FEETRMD
(AARAEE
SEERH KD
FERRON) ]ER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) ZHh.BRAEK e (&)
(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d HEEEREN (E)
(i)  Special reserve (continued) (i)  HIERE (&)

(4) the Limit may be reduced by the amount of (4) EEBMHE% -
any increase, after the Effective Date, in the HEETR G (B
paid-up share capital or share premium AN
account of the Company which results from BARF &R
an issue of shares (other than for the purposes HN) HAEUIR & 3k
of any redemption or purchase by the HREB3iE R
Company of its own shares) for cash or other BRI IR A
consideration or by way of the capitalisation sk A 5| 2
of distributable profits or reserves; AR Z R
ANk 4 (B AR
0,z #R] R {E

BB RS
(5) the Limit may be reduced upon the liquidation, (5) MAERH H& -
disposal or other realisation, after the Effective EER - HEXK
Date, of a subsidiary, an associated company VA A 75 =438
or any of the financial or fixed assets of the WS RNCTR: ey
Company by the amount of the provision NAEIHA R FME
made in relation to such subsidiary, A B 75 =X B FE &
associated company or financial or fixed ER RN_ZET
assets as at 30 September 2003 less such =FNA=+H
amount (if any) as credited to the Special REBENE R
Reserve as a result of such liquidation, IR N k=l
disposal or realisation; and W EEEE
FriR iz e
BRI )& A%
HES#IREIE
FTEE & 2 R Rl

BERESRER (1
B) 28 ARk
BB R
K
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R FE s R 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) Zth. BRARKH#E (&)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) HEEEREN (E)
(i)  Special reserve (continued) (i)  FHIEE (&)

(6) in the event that the amount standing to the (6) MR IREE EXCE
credit of the Special Reserve at any time (4) X%,/ 3(5)1&
exceeds the Limit after any reduction of the HIJB B R 5E &
Limit pursuant to provisos (4) and/or (5) 1 Rl 8 2 E B
above, the Company shall be at liberty to SREBAA ER
transfer the amount of any such excess to the [ NN T
general reserves of the Company and the BB 2 BB AR
same shall become available for distribution. NAElz — MR

B mEBESE
AP IR Z Ao

During the year, an amount of $686,000 was FRNBRE i

transferred from the Special Reserve in 5 AME R I i 1S B

accordance with the undertaking. 686,0007T°

(iii)  Reserve/(goodwill) arising on consolidation (iii)  ARERREAELZF
w7 (EE)

The reserve/(goodwill) arising on consolidation EAREM = (a)FT

has been set up and dealt with in accordance (& ETBR RN R

with the accounting policy set out in note 2(a). BITERIEFTEE 2

() -
(iv)  Exchange reserve (iv) B FE

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign b W R & Sl E s

exchange differences arising from the translation B S 765 2 BA TS SRR

of the financial statements of foreign operations. EXCZABEERE

The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the o AN N AIRIRM

accounting policy set out in note 1(t). —(O)PTE IR R

BiEHE
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i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREHFZHI FrELBELBKE)

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) “th.BRARGEE (&)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (d) HFEEEREN (E)

(v)  Fair value reserve (v) AnER#FE
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative RN BEREBRERGE
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale BEHRBEZHERS
securities held at the balance sheet date and is NREz RetEaEF
dealt with in accordance with the accounting R EARKRFT 52— (F)
policies in notes 1(f) and (k). R (k) FTE & 5T BUR

BRI
(vi)  Reserve fund i) fEEE

Statutory reserve — wholly foreign-owned
enterprises

EERE—-RINED
%

Subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC, which are IR &S B AR B 2
wholly foreign-owned enterprises, follow the BATRHARINER
accounting principles and relevant financial FREKBEAR
regulations of the PRC applicable to wholly EINEREZPEE

foreign-owned enterprises (“PRC GAAP -
WFOE”), in the preparation of its accounting
records and financial statements. Pursuant to the
accounting regulations for business enterprises
(EEestHE[BE (2000) 25 5%]), the
subsidiaries are required to appropriate 10% of
the profit arrived at in accordance with PRC GAAP
— WFQOE for each year to a statutory reserve. The
profit arrived at must be used initially to set off
against any accumulated losses. The
appropriations to statutory reserve, after offsetting
against any accumulated losses, must be made
before the distribution of dividends to
shareholders. The appropriation is required until
the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the

FTRA XA RIS
B(PEAREE
RA - 25 E B
ESIDRE e
M HRE R
2 HE (g
(2000)25%5%) - Bt B
NEEBIERREA
REFTRA—2HNE
EEMS 2 AT
Hrh10% 2| E%
TR B NER
FALAIK S8 (] 251
Beboh RS
A5 (BB ERR

registered capital. This statutory reserve is not FTEER) BEER
distributable in the form of cash dividends, but 1875 Pl AR K
may be used to set off losses or be converted A& B oMt B A RIAE—

into paid-in capital.

HERBNEEER
H EELTEREE
EAMERS0% A
b lbEERETE
LReREFERD
K- HER] AR KRS
B ER AT
j;o
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i 5 2% M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

29.

30.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(e)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2005, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $98,642,000 (2004: $20,782,000). After
the balance sheet date the directors proposed a final
dividend of 0.6 cent per ordinary share (2004: 0.6 cent
per share), amounting to $15,311,000 (2004:
$15,293,000). This dividend has not been recognised
as a liability at the balance sheet date.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks

are limited by the Group’s financial management policies and

practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Debts are usually due within 30 days from
the date of billing.

Debtors of the Group represent receivables in respect
of toll bridge revenue and waste-water treatment revenue
which are settled on a monthly basis.

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s trade debtors of
$14,343,000 were due from three customers including
the largest customer of the Group. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet. The
Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits, bank loans and loans from ultimate holding
company. The Group does not use financial derivatives

to hedge against the interest rate risk.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) =t. @®I A #)
(¢) Interest rate risk (continued) () R=EEE (&)
Effective interest rates and repricing analysis FERFEREZTE XK
In respect of income-earning financial assets and BEREUMA MBS E E RETE
interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following table BiSaEms TREHRE
indicates their effective interest rates at the balance sheet EREE R 2 BRFIR R
date and the periods in which they reprice or the maturity #EJ S 7 M= 2 H1 B
dates, if earlier. (WAREE) -
The Group AEE
2005 2004
“2%1f TR
Effective One More  Effective One More
interest year 12 25 than  inferest year 12 25 than
rate Total orless years years  Syears rate Total or less years years 5 years
BBz B -FENT  -BESE ZERE BEME  EREE g T -EF CERE RN
% $1000 $7000 $7000 $7000 $7000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
r S S S S ﬁ I S S S
Repricing dates for RHBRAETEE
assets/labiltes) which ZEE/ (Bf)2
reprice before maturity EHEE ]
Pledged bank deposis BERERR 0.7%1.9% 89,197 89,197 - - - 18%23% 6,912 6,912 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLSEN 0.3%1.4% 192620 192,620 - - - 0.1%0.7% 113453 113,453 - - -
Secured bank loans HAROER 4% (3695)  (6429)  (6429)  (19.286)  (4821) T1%5%  (49393)  (1249)  (642)  (19.286)  (11249)
24485 275,368 (6429)  (19.286)  (4821) 10972 107,936 (6429)  (19286)  (11.249)
Maturity dates for assets/ YERHERAET
(labiliies) which do B%s8%/(8R)
not reprice before maturity ZHER
Deposits with bank FER 21% 907 907 - - - 16%21% 5,854 5854 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLEE 168% 25046 215946 - - - 02%24% 48905 458905 - - -
Secured berk oans EERSAER L1%64%  (STSOT8)  (3798)  (AS178) (199478) (92824) 15%52%  (3T8%)  (B0021)  (1789)  (3193) (228%2)
Loans fiom uimate SUERLAER
halding compary 095 (M0480) - (M04%0) . - 1BRST%  (451705) - (sh) - -

(798905) 183,055  (489.658) (199.478) (292824 (304841) 414738 (463494)  (43193) (2228%2)
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) =t. @I A #)
(¢) Interest rate risk (continued) () R=EEE (&)
The Company PN
2005 2004
ot £ 5t EIME
Effective One More  Effective One More
interest year 12 25 than inferest year 12 %5 than
rate Total or less years years  Syears rate Total 0r less years years 5 years
BBz B -F9NT  -BESE ZERE BEME  EREE B -EIT -EZE ZERE RENL
% $1000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i o o fz T I T T
Repricing dates for HHBAAETREL
assets/labilites) which EE/(8f) ZE7
reprice before maturity B H]
Cash and cash equivalents RERRLSEN 03% 004 30204 - - - 01%02% 4184 4184 = = =
Secured berk oans BERRER 5% (6965)  (6423)  (6429)  (19286)  (4%21) TI%1S%  (9393)  (12429)  (64%9)  (1966)  (11249)
6761) 275 (649)  (19286)  (4820) (5209)  (825)  (649)  (19288)  (11249)
Maturity dates for assets/ GENIBAAET
(labiliies) which do B%08%/(8R)
not reprice before maturity AL
(Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEN 16% 198203 198,203 = = - 02%24% 439819 439819 - - -
Secured bank loans BEREAES 4% [5000) (2500 . . - 1% [(000)  (000) - - -
Loans fom ulimate BRERATER
halding company 195 (W0480) - (0480 - - 1BEST%  (451705) - (417) - -

(267.217) 173208 (440.480) = = (61866) 389819 (461,705) = =
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency risk

Presently, there is no hedging policy with respect to the
foreign exchange exposure. The Group’s transactional
currencies are Chinese Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars
as substantially all the turnover are within Hong Kong
and other parts in the PRC. With the natural hedging of
the revenue and costs being denominated in Chinese
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, the Group’s
transactional foreign exchange exposure was

insignificant.

With respect to borrowings denominated in United States
dollars (USD), the impact of foreign exchange rate
fluctuations is insignificant as the HKD is pegged to USD.

Sensitivity analysis

In managing interest rate risk, the Group aims to reduce
the impact of short-term fluctuations on the Group’s
earnings. Over the longer term, however, permanent
changes in interest rates would have an impact on
consolidated earnings.

At 31 December 2005, it is estimated that a general
increase of one percentage point in interest rates would
increase the Group’s profit before tax by approximately
$2,449,000 (2004: $710,000) so far as the effect on

interest-bearing financial instruments is concerned.
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

()

Fair values

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, bank
deposits, debtors, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments and creditors, other payables and accrued
expenses are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the immediate or short term maturity
of these financial instruments. The carrying amounts of
bank loans and loans from ultimate holding company

approximate their fair values.

As set out in note 17, the Company had amounts due
from/to subsidiaries. It is not practical to estimate the
fair values of the amounts due to the related party nature
of these instruments.

Estimation of fair values
The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of the
following financial instruments.
(i) Securities
Fair value is based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date without any deduction for
transaction costs.
(ii) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value

of future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.
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31.

ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS

On 1 December 2005, the Group acquired the waste-water
treatment business together with the corresponding assets and
liabilities (“the Acquired Business”) from Zibo Finance Bureau
and Zibo Environmental Waste Water Treatment Company at a
consideration of RMB224,055,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$214,891,000). For the one month ended 31 December 2005,
the Acquired Business contributed net profit of $268,000 to the
consolidated net profit for the year. It is impracticable to disclose
the impact on the Group’s revenue and net profit had the
acquisition occurred on 1 January 2005 since the Acquired
Business was previously held by the local government
authorities in the PRC and no waste-water treatment revenue
was charged for the waste-water treated.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets
and liabilities.
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31. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESS (continued) - NEEEK (2

WREEBRIKER 2 EEFRE:

The Acquired Business’s net assets at the acquisition date:

Carrying Fair value Recognised

amounts adjustments values

IREE AREFAE ERAEE

$°000 $°000 $'000

Fir Fr Fr

Property, plant and equipment  #1% BE K& &iE 103,179 (3,185) 99,994
Interest in leasehold land BRI EHEFE

held for own use under BRZHEELTH

operating lease S 97,361 (31,285) 66,076
Intangible assets mEAE = 34,548 34,548
Deferred tax assets B IHEE - 356 356
Debtors, other receivables, FEUBR N - Bt FE UL

deposits and prepayments IR me RIBNFRIE 15,124 = 15,124
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY 281 = 281
Accrued expenses EsTER = (3,591) (3,591)
Net identifiable assets AIHREERBE

and liabilities R 215,945 (3,157) 212,788
Goodwill arising on acquisition — WEEEA 7 &

(note 16) (BtaE+73) 2,103
Consideration, satisfied in cash X&' LB & 214,891
Balance payment shown as TEiREBEERAGBE

other payable in the HI1E [ B fth FEHERIE

consolidated balance sheet ZERTEI R (114,727)
Cash acquired R RIS S (281)
Net cash outflow HEmHFRE 99,883

Goodwill has arisen on acquisition of the Acquired Business 1 U B B T A P B
AR BB A DR R A

RSB EE 2 #R

because of assembled workforce that did not meet the criteria

for recognition as an intangible asset at the date of acquisition.
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions.

(a) The Group entered into the following related party
transactions with its ultimate holding company, China
Everbright Holdings Company Limited (“CEH”):

— Interest expense —F B
— Rental income for provision of — M AEEA
office premises Z S A

(b) The Group entered into the following related party
transaction with an associate:

Service expense for operation of B RS E 5K R IR R
waste-water treatment plant i
(note 32(g)) (HE=+=(g))
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) ST EHBEBAGCZEARRS (&)

(¢)  The Group entered into the following related party (c) AEEZGHEEIEZEHBA
transactions with the minority shareholders of non-wholly A2 DEPRERET L 5| BaHE
owned subsidiaries of the Group: AER 5

2005 2004
—EZREF —ETNF
$°000 $'000
F Fr
Waste-water treatment revenue TEIKEEUA

(note 32(g)) (Btat=+=(g9)) 52,423 =
Technical service expense F g AR 7% & 2,211 -

Operating lease charge in respect AR5 /KERIRRHE 2
of waste-water treatment facilities wEAEY N 959 =

(d) The Group entered into the following related party (d) REFETLHEEIEZENRBA
transactions with subsidiaries of a minority shareholder A2 VEIRER 2B AT
of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group: ST R REEE AR S

2005 2004
—ETHF ZETPNF
$°000 $'000
Fr Frr
- Fee paid/payable for work — WRBEIRZ - RER
performed in connection EEA R KRR
with the construction of & RIEE SRR IR R
waste-water treatment P17 .2 T32 1M
plant pursuant to an BN B

engineering, procurement
and construction contract
and a service contract 51,446 -

oo oa

= Purchase of equipment — BEREB 3,114 =
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e) The Group paid key management personnel
compensation as follows:

Salaries and other short-term e R HAKEE
employee benefits BB R
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEI R

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 5(b)).
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32. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) ST.EBEBACZEARS (&)
(f) Included in the balance sheets are the following balances f BEEEEAERANE T
with related parties: L BREE A (T2 AEA:
The Group The Company
5@ b NG|
2005 2004 2005 2004
“EZRE “ZIMF “ZZIF “ZTQEEF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fir Fr Fir
Amount due from minority FEW D ERER IR
shareholder (included in (BFEERURERR
debtors, other receivables, H i EIE
deposits and prepayments) &e REFFER) 4,595 = - =
Deposits placed with related TR B At iR1T
party bank (included in cash LEHR(BEERE
and cash equivalents) REEEENA) 27,394 49,003 (23,737) 288
Loans from ultimate holding RRERREER
company (535,628) (545,206) (440,480) (451,705)
Amount due to ultimate JER SRR A R
holding company IR - (9,186) - (8,559)
Amounts due to minority B PSR TR
shareholders (575) (7,962) - -
Amount due to minority FER DB FRIR
shareholder (included in (BEEENERER:
creditors, other payables H A fERTFIE R
and accrued expenses) EEERRN) (18,756) - - -
Amount due to associate B & R R 5R
(included in creditors, other (BEE MR
payables and accrued H At ERTFOE R
charges) BT ERR) (1,393) = - =
Amounts due to related JE R R B 5RIR
companies (included in (BT EMERR
creditors, other payables HiERHER
and accrued expenses) [EETERR) (32,012) - - =
(9)  During the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group (9) EHEZTTHF+-A=1
entered into certain continuing connected transactions. —BIEFE - REEFTLT
The Company’s independent non-executive directors B THBBER S ANAT
have reviewed these transactions. Details of which are 2B IEHITESEERAE
disclosed under the paragraph “Continuing connected AR BERXGHBEE
transactions” in the report of the directors. SWET [FHERERS]
EE R
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33. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2005
not provided for in the financial statements were as

== RIE

(1) R-FBEFI=A=t-
B AR MR P R

follows: ZERESENT:
The Group The Company
rEE RAF

2005 2004 2005 2004
—EE2RE —TTNF C—BERE —"TTMOF
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Contracted for BETA 289,081 235,630 27,564 58,480
Authorised but not contracted for EREERS 19,667 = = =
308,748 235,630 27,564 58,480

(b) At 31 December 2005, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

Within 1 year —FA
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFNA
After 5 years hFiE

The Group leases waste-water treatment facilities from a minority
shareholder under an operating lease. The lease runs for twenty
years, with an option to renew the lease for a further five years.
The Group also leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
two years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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TEE
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Fr T
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34.

35.

36.

37.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2004, there were contingent liabilities in respect
of guarantees given to banks by the Company for end user
financing guarantees and undertakings executed by a disposed
associate to banks amounting to $745,000. Such contingent
liabilities were released as at 31 December 2005.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of assets pledged are set out in note 23. The aggregate
net book value of assets pledged amounted to approximately
$662,693,000 as at 31 December 2005 (2004: $300,607,000).

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified as a result
of the changes in accounting policies. Further details are
disclosed in note 2.

PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

At 31 December 2005, the directors consider the parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Guildford Limited
and China Everbright Holdings Company Limited, which are
incorporated in BVl and Hong Kong respectively. Neither of
them produces financial statements available for public use.

SO HEAERE

RZZETMF+_A=+—H 'K
AEE—RE LS E AR MRIT
BUBRKEAPRMERRBRESEM

MA AR TIREERATEAE 2B
BEAT45,000 RS HF 1
ZA=T—H hEIFAELE

fRBR o

TR EEEA
EEREEFRENME—1T="-
R-_ZETAF+-A=1+—H B
EMEECREFELBOR
662,693,0007T (ZZEZMF:
300,607,0007T) °

SR HEBREF
“?ﬁ?%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁg
MEM A - E— T FBRNME

——l_‘t-ﬁ/ EJ& X%Eﬂﬁ’l\\ﬁ

RZETRF+-_A=+—H &

REREE 2 AR MK TR
A" Bl AGuildford Limited K2/
BEAAREEBRAT HEDRIR
RERRHS REBTMAKL K
EHEERTEREABRARAL
ENFH -
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38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS SHA\EAHERBE-ZSZTHE+
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE “A=t—BLFEEZETH
FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31 B e R AE M2 IERT - SRl R =2
DECEMBER 2005 B E
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA REEMBHRETIEBRE  FES
has issued the following amendments, new standards and RIS E AWM MER] « ¥R
interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting N2 - 25 &5 - BFRAIRRER
period ending 31 December 2005 and which have not been HE-ZEERF+-_A=1T—Hz
adopted in these financial statements: SETHR AL - WEMBIRE

TMERAZEFER] - EH M2 -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BUATHERz#%
Mz et HEEXR
HKFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation of 1 January 2006
BB E AERIE 655 mineral resources —ZEERF-A—H
BEERMGEZ BT
HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining whether an arrangement 1 January 2006
BB E ERIREE 455 contains a lease ZEERF-A—H
BEX-RZHRLEEHE
HK(IFRIC) 5 Rights to interests arising from 1 January 2006
BB ERIREE LR decommissioning, restoration and ZEERF-A—H
environmental rehabilitation funds
RERRREE - BERRREERES
EE R
HK(IFRIC) 6 Liabilities arising from participating in 1 December 2005
BRI WS LERREENR a specific market — Waste electrical —EERFE+_A—H

and electronic equipment
ZHEFEMS BN RETFRERER
FRES BT
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38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2005 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19
BRI ERF195R 2 ER]

Employee benefits — Actuarial Gains
and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures

SHNEAERBE—SSHF+
ZHA=t+—BLFEZEH
1] R A R 2 18 /] ~ #T 2RI K 52
BowEE @)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BUT RSz
Bth 2 St AR

1 January 2006
—EEAE-A—H

REEN - REEE - SEEIRNE

Financial instruments:

TRTH :

Amendments to HKAS 39
ARSI ERIZE395R 2 ER]

Recognition and measurement:

BRRIE

- Cash flow hedge accounting of

1 January 2006

forecast intragroup transactions —ETRFE—H—H

B EEARRZZHERE

HmgEHA

- The fair value option

RNEEETR

— Financial guarantee contracts

B HEIR
G4 —ETRF—-HA—H
Amendments, as a ZEERFHEBAA
consequence of the (E&]) &bl 2
Hong Kong Companies CHEEEE
(Amendment) Ordinance
2005, to:
— HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements
BB ERFE15R IR 2 2
— HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements
BB GTERIFE275R fre KB B TSR
— HKFRS 3 Business combinations

FRMT RS ERE 35 XBadt

1 January 2006
—EERF—H—H
1 January 2006

1 January 2006
—EERF-H—H
1 January 2006
—EERF-H—H
1 January 2006
—EEAF-A—H

HEXEAERERAR —FRAEER




Notes to the Financial Statements
B EmRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BB HZHI FrELBELBKE)

38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS SHAEAERBE_ZZTHF+

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2005 (continued)

HKFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosures
BB mEERETH SRTAE : #E

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements:
BB GTHERIE 1R 2 (EF] capital disclosures

MBHREZ2H - ENRE

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies (Amendment) Ordinance
2005 came into effect on 1 December 2005 and would be first
applicable to the Group’s financial statements for the period
beginning 1 January 2006.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether these
amendments, new standards and interpretations would have a
significant impact on its results of operations and financial
position.
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ZHA=t+—BLFEZEFH
1] R AE Rz 18 /] ~ #T 22 R K 52
Bzugesd (@)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
BUT RSz
Bz EH RN

1 January 2007
—TTtLF—A—H

1 January 2007
—BTLE—A—A
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1) &) ERZZEERE T A
—BAER  AEERBR-_ZTTRF
—A—REFEZHBEHRRAXSL
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